
 
August 16, 2021 

 
Memorandum from President Murdaugh  
 
 
The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32304 

 
The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District 
Board of Trustees is provided for your use at the Monday, August 16, 2021 
Board Meeting. 
 
The meeting will be held in the Hinson Administration Building Board Room at 
444 Appleyard Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 
 

 

  



Agenda 
District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32308 
Monday, August 16, 2021 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
            i.         Moment of Silence 
            ii.        Pledge of Allegiance  

COMMENTS 
            i.         Board Chair 
            ii.        Board Members  
            iii.       President  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. June 21, 2021 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

2. The District Board of Trustees 2021 Board Self-Evaluation 

Recommend the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community College 
acknowledge and accept the results of the 2021 Board Self-Evaluation as 
presented.   

3. Election of Officers 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

PRESENTATIONS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allow the governing board to focus their 
time and attention on action items that require more elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the 
consent agenda is to support efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific recommendation, then the 
trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the Chair.  This action item will be considered in the 
regular order of business as an individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or discussion will remain on the 
consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and 



unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 
consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 

4. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 

5. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Oliver (June 2021) 

Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

6. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

7. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

8. Architect Invoices 

Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 

TCC Foundation 

9. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

10. TCC Foundation – Gift Acceptance 

Accept gift as presented. 

Academic Affairs 

11. Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards and Public 
Charter Schools 

That the Board approve the articulation agreements. 

12. Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools 

That the Board approve the articulation agreements 

13. Academic Curriculum Changes 

That the Board approve the recommendation for the program revisions, course 
additions, deletions, and revisions as attached. 

Administrative Services 

14. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

15. Fund Analysis - August 

For information only, no Board action required. 

 



16. Annual Inventory of Property Assets

Presented as an information item only, no action required.

17. Disposition of Surplus Property Assets

Authorize the College to dispose of the items listed.

PUBLIC COMMENT 

WORKSHOP 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

September 20, 2021      Location:  Main Campus 

ADJOURNMENT 



June 21, 2021  Page 1 of 4 

Minutes 
District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32304 
June 21, 2021 

Business Meeting – 2:30 PM 
 
The June 2021 District Board of Trustees meeting was called to order by Chair Messersmith at 
approximately 2:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present:  Chair Messersmith, Trustees Callaway, Grant, Kilpatrick, Lamb, Moore and Ward 

Absent:  None  Via phone/Zoom:  None 
Others Present:  President Murdaugh, Candice Grause, Lenda Kling, Bret Ingerman, Josh Willoughby, 
Craig Knox, Alice Maxwell, Kim Moore, Nyla Davis, Heather Mitchell, E.E. Eunice, Don Herr, Lei Wang, 
Melinda Rodgers, Barbara Wills, Bobby Jones, Joey Walter, Calandra Stringer, Anthony Jones, Donmetrie 
Clark, Gregory Williams, Gerald Jones, Kalynda Holton, Bill Spiers, Sharisse Turner and Amy Bradbury. 
Via Zoom:  Jennifer Russell, Chip Singletary, Mike Robeck, Ayanna Young, Scott Balog, Lauren 
Schoenberger, Stephanie Solomon, Jennifer Bradley, Tina Workman and Jacque Parramore. 
 
COMMENTS 
i.         Board Chair Messersmith asked everyone to stand for a moment of silence and the pledge of 
allegiance. He stated he had a wonderful year as Chair. He referenced the letter from Senator Scott about 
the Aspen award, the CASE award for special events and the partnership with the Blockchain Academy 
certifications. He expressed his amazement at the funds TCC has set aside to assist students. 
 
ii.        Board Members – Stating she was absent at his first meeting, Trustee Callaway welcomed Trustee 
Ward and shared she was thrilled to read the Strategic Plan accomplishments. Trustee Ward thanked Ms. 
Thomas for the opportunity to speak at Take Stock in Children. Trustee Moore thanked Chair Messersmith 
for his outstanding year as Chair. Trustee Kilpatrick said it is amazing how during COVID we have stayed 
on track with the strategic plan. Trustee Grant thanked VP Mitchell for inviting Municode to sponsor the 
Eagles Rise Summer Camp. Trustee Lamb said everyone has done a great job during COVID. 
 
iii.       President Murdaugh thanked the Board for the recognitions, indicating he is proud of what everyone 
has done. He said Director Long will be assessing our progress on the strategic plan. He recognized Dr. 
Wang for the successful completion of our SACSCOC five-year review, with zero recommendations and 
findings. He thanked Trustee Grant and Municode for giving each of the Eagles Rise Summer Camp 
students a computer.  
 
He shared we are proud of the virtual commencement and will be going to in-person commencements 
twice a year. He recognized Director Eunice who is retiring, with his last day being June 30th. He 
announced that after a team process, Steve Outlaw will be the new Director at the Florida Public Safety 
Institute (FPSI). Director Eunice thanked the Board for selecting President Murdaugh and Dr. Murdaugh for 
his leadership.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. May 17, 2021 Meeting 
Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Kilpatrick SECOND: Trustee Moore 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. 2021 Presidential Evaluation Meeting 
Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Moore 

  Motion passed unanimously.   
  
INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS   
Director Maxwell introduced media clips for federal student funds, Aspen award, hurricane preparation, 
Camp Shakespeare, dental program in Florida top ten, first national Juneteenth holiday, etc.  



June 21, 2021  Page 2 of 4 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 
  3. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 
4. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive (April and May 2021) 
 Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 
5. Sponsored Programs – Provider 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
6. Architect Invoices 
 Authorize payment of architectural invoice as presented.  
MOTION: Trustee Callaway SECOND: Trustee Lamb 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

TCC Foundation 
7. TCC Foundation Update 
VP Mitchell said incoming funds are still ahead of last year. She thanked Trustee Grant for his 
generous remarks and Municode for matching the funds for the Eagles Rise Summer Camp. She 
referenced the updates that will occur as a result of the successful Athletics Campaign, thanking 
Trustee Ward for his support. President Murdaugh asked the Board to thank any City and County 
Commissioners they see for their unanimous support to TCC. 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 
 
 Academic Affairs 

8. Laboratory/Course and Distance Learning Fees for 2021-2022 
That the Board approve the laboratory/course and distance learning fees as presented and 
direct staff to conduct an assessment of fees to identify opportunities to reduce student 
cost. 

MOTION: Trustee Ward  SECOND: Trustee Grant 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
9. Annual, Continuing and Post Award Contract Recommendations 

That the Board approve the recommendations for annual, continuing and post award 
contracts in the attached list. 

MOTION: Trustee Callaway SECOND: Trustee Lamb 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
10. Academic Curriculum Changes 
Trustee Kilpatrick thanked everyone for staying current and useful to our graduates. 

That the Board approve the recommendation for the program revisions, program deletion, 
new courses, and course changes as attached. 

MOTION: Trustee Ward  SECOND: Trustee Moore 
  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
11. Policy Manual Change 
Provost Stringer and Director Spiers indicated we are one of only three colleges in Florida that 
does not give students returning to college another chance. Director Spiers said this change will 
give transfer students a second chance at financial aid. Responding to Trustee Ward, Provost 
Stringer stated we will provide them with an academic success coach and continually monitor the 
individuals to ensure their success. Responding to Trustee Lamb, Director Spiers said there are 
one hundred eighty-eight (188) of these students. 

Approve revision of College policy as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Ward  SECOND: Trustee Moore 

  Motion passed unanimously. 



June 21, 2021  Page 3 of 4 

Administrative Services 
12. Construction Status Report 
Chair Messersmith recommended we find a way to control access to the vehicle charging station. 
VP Wills stated the charging station is for our use and we will monitor, if others wish to use. 

Presented as an information item only. 
 
13. Fund Analysis – May 

For information only, no Board action required. 
 
14. Use of College Personnel and Facilities  

Approve the use of College resources for Foundation DSO activities as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Callaway SECOND: Trustee Grant 

Motion passed unanimously 
 
15. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 2022-23 Through 2026-2027 

Approve the 2022-23 through 2026-27 CIP, as summarized on the CIP-2 form.  
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Lamb 

Motion passed unanimously 
 
16. COVID Air Quality Upgrade Contract 
VP Wills shared the federal funds will allow us to make additional improvements to our current 
system, including the replacement of some of our current air handler units. She said, although we 
received proposals from ten (10) other venders, we chose Siemens because we have a current 
contract with them for energy savings performance. She stated they have been very responsive 
and we continue to receive savings we can put back into the campus.  
 
President Murdaugh said we do not usually bring a sole source contract to the Board. Chair 
Messersmith indicated he supports this as the continuation of a project. Trustee Moore stated she 
supports this, since it is a long-term relationship and they already know our system. Trustee Lamb 
confirmed the contract will be a one-year installation, with a five-year program warranty. Jason 
Taylor, Siemens, responded to Trustee Grant saying they used the state pricing model previously 
used for TCC. VP Wills said Siemens will also be providing some adjunct instructors. 

Authorize the College to enter into a contract for air quality upgrades not to exceed $4.25 
million. 

MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 
Motion passed unanimously 

 
17. Bookstore Service Contract 

Approve a one-year renewal of the Follett contract for bookstore services. 
MOTION: Trustee Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Kilpatrick 

Motion passed unanimously 
 
18. Changes to Salary Schedule 

Approve updates to the 2021 – 2022 Salary Schedule as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Ward  SECOND: Trustee Grant 

Motion passed unanimously 
 
19. College Operating Budget for FY 2021-22 

Approve the College’s FY 2021-22 Operating Budget. 
MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Grant 

Motion passed unanimously 
 
20. Student Financial Obligations 
VP Wills said this is a temporary waiver request for the period Fall 2020 through Spring 2022, 
indicating the temporary waivers we allowed last year represented two million one-hundred 
thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in tuition we would otherwise not have received. She stated the 
students will still owe the money (this waiver will allow them to register, but not get a transcript) and 
indicated we will be able to use some of the student federal funds to recoup some of the money 
owed. Trustee Moore asked how the other colleges and local institutions are handling this process; 



June 21, 2021  Page 4 of 4 

with VP Wills saying some of the colleges do not have this policy, but for those who do – they are 
looking at or doing some variation of this process.  

Authorization to waive Policy 09-03, Receipts and Disbursements, and allow students with 
outstanding financial obligations to register for classes. 

MOTION: Trustee Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 
  Motion passed unanimously 
 

Information Technology 
21. Information Technology Plan for 2021-22 
Trustee Moore said it is helpful to know that our students, faculty and staff know that we want to be 
up-to-date, current and proactive. 

Approve the Information Technology Plan for FY 2021-22.  
MOTION: Trustee Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Kilpatrick 

  Motion passed unanimously 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

22. 2021 - 2022 Schedule of Business Meetings and Workshops 
Request Board approve schedule as presented. 

MOTION: Trustee Moore  SECOND: Trustee Lamb 
Motion passed unanimously 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None  
 
WORKSHOP 
None 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Murdaugh shared we will be moving back to the Board Room at our August Board Meeting, 
indicating the college will be back to full-time normal. He said we will offer as many in-person classes as 
students want, although we did this for spring and they primarily chose online classes. He indicated we will 
make vaccines available for those who want them and respect personal choices for vaccines and masks. 
He stated we did not have a single incident of a student transmitting the virus to a faculty or staff member. 
 
He recognized Trustee Lamb’s upcoming birthday. He stated we need to prioritize the production of nurses, 
indicating the legislature provided funds for this and VP Wills has found a way to use some of the federal 
funds to expand the simulation center at the Ghazvini Center for Healthcare Education. He shared the next 
graduation will be December 11th. 

 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
August 16, 2021  Location:  Main Campus 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Meeting adjourned at approximately 4:03 p.m.   
 
 
 
Minutes approved at the regular meeting of the District Board of Trustees on August 16, 2021. 
 
 
 
            
Eric Grant     Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
Chair      President 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Lei Wang, Ed.D.                                                                                                                             

Associate Vice President for Institutional Effectiveness 
   
SUBJECT: The District Board of Trustees 2021 Board Self-Evaluation 

 
 
Item Description 
The Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC), as 
the accrediting agency for Tallahassee Community College, requires Boards to define and 
regularly evaluate their respective responsibilities and expectations. In accordance with 
SACSCOC requirements, the members of the District Board of Trustees have completed the 
2021 Board Self-Evaluation Survey. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached summary of the results of the 2021 Board Self-Evaluation reflect input from all 
seven members of the District Board of Trustees. The summary is presented for Board 
consideration and discussion, with goals of: 

• identifying areas for improvement; 
• achieving a better understanding of what members expect from themselves and    

each other to perform as an effective Board; 
• identifying strategies to enhance Board performance; and 
• gaining awareness of noteworthy strengths and characteristics. 

 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no funding/financial implications. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
This is the first year the Board has completed a self-evaluation. 
 
Recommended Action 
Recommend the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community College acknowledge 
and accept the results of the 2021 Board Self-Evaluation as presented.   
 

 



 
2021 Board Self-Evaluation 

The District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community College 
 
5 = Excellent 
4 = Above Average 
3 = Average 
2 = Below Average 
1 = Unsatisfactory 
 

DBOT AVERAGE 
RATING 

(TOTAL DBOT 
POINTS) 

The Board ensures the College 
 provides accurate and timely information in order to perform Board 

responsibilities and make decisions. 

5.00 

(30) 

The Board ensures that the college allocates institutional financial  
resources for programs and services in a legal and competitive 

manner. 

5.00 

(30) 

The Board supports TCC's programs and activities by attending 
College events. 

5.00 

(30) 

The Board focuses on policy  
issues, not on administrative matters. 

4.83 

(29) 

The Board ensures the financial  
resources of the College are being used to provide sound educational 

programs by reviewing monthly fund analysis reports and approving the 
annual operating budget. 

4.83 

(29) 

The Board is regularly informed of changes in state policies and 
statutes,  

and recommended responses and actions of the state college system. 

4.83 

(29) 

The Board regularly reviews TCC's mission and strategic plan. 
4.83 

(29) 

The Board has a comprehensive understanding of the needs of the  
College's service district. 

4.83 

(29) 

The Board informs the President of community contacts, involvement  
and issues. 

4.83 

(29) 



The Board is knowledgeable about TCC's educational programs and  
services. 

4.83 

(29) 

The Board stays current on social, economic, and educational trends 
that affect the College.  

4.83 

(29) 

The Board helps inform the community of the College's needs. 
4.67 

(28) 

 

Table 1. In terms of both structure and focus, what are the strengths of the Board? 

Focused on student success. 

Our Board is actively engaged in supporting the college both strategically and via attendance of college 
events. Our team is extremely collegial and truly loves serving the college. 

The individualized networking and life experiences of the TCC Board is a major strength. 

The Board has always work together as a team. That is our strength. Good team work. 

We are well informed of both internal and external issues that may affect the Institution and bring 
individual strengths to address them. 

It is to provide an arm of support for the educational structure, checks and balances for the procedures, 
assist in the promotion of the school, and approve the budget for the school. 

 

Table 2. In what areas is the Board most in need of assistance, support, or training to better perform 
its responsibilities? 

None I can name. 

There is a wealth of depth and experience on our Board, and for occasional new members, those 
insights are passed on. 

Inform the board on what the College provides to the Community. 

We are well prepared to fulfill our responsibilities. 

It is always helpful to know and have information on the policies and procedures, updates on the 
progress or success of the strategic plans, and meeting other board members from different schools to 
get ideas of how we can implement or better our school. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ELECTIONS - Chairman of the Board calls for nominations for Board Chair 
and Vice Chair.  
 
Chair and Chair Elect Nominations: 
 
Chair:  The floor is open for nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College: 
 
A Board member makes the nominations. 
 
After all nominations are made the Chair responds:   
 
I will entertain a motion that _________________ and 
___________________ be elected to the positions of Chair and Vice Chair, 
respectively, of the District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community 
College. 
 
Motion by Board member 
Second 
Vote 
 
 
After election the meeting is immediately resumed under the direction of 
the newly elected Chair 
 
 
 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Human Resources Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval for personnel actions. 
 
Overview and Background 
Pursuant to College Policy 04-06 and 04-17, the College brings forth a request to approve 
appointments, separations and outside employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2021-2022 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented. 

 



Name Department Effective Date
Sierra Anderson CTE Outreach & Recruitment, Director Workforce Development June 1, 2021

Steven Outlaw
Florida Public Safety Institute, Executive 
Director Florida Public Safety Institute June 24, 2021

Adria Gumbel Special Projects & Innovation, Director Workforce Development July 6, 2021
Ryan Preatto Student Services, Director Student Accessibility Services July 12, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date
Carson Felder Digital Communications Specialist Communications and Marketing June 14, 2021
Tamares Cockfield Career and Academic Advisor Student Success & Retention June 14, 2021
Vanessa Chatman Career Services & Internship Coordinator Career Services June 14, 2021
Ashley Allen Call Center Representative Call Center June 15, 2021
Hugo Cabrera Men's Basketball, Head Coach Athletics June 15, 2021
James Marujo Career and Academic Advisor Student Success & Retention July 1, 2021
Sara Beasley Career and Academic Advisor Student Success & Retention July 1, 2021
Douglas Hughes Landscaper FPSI  Facilities July 12, 2021
Natasha Mitchell Student Accessibility Advisor Student Accessibility Services July 12, 2021
William Showers Maintenance Technician II FPSI Facilities July 12, 2021
Muhammad Janneh Facilities Operations Superintendent Facilities July 20, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date
None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date
Jeanese McCree Staff Assistant DOE - Charter Schools II June 1, 2021
Timothy Girard Social Studies Content Specialist DOE - Test Development Center June 1, 2021
Kristin Forehand Special Education Assistant DOC - Holmes C.I. June 18, 2021
Mikquaile Jones Program Logistics Coordinator DOC - Vocational Training July 1, 2021
Nicole Pettineo Culinary Career/Technical Educator DOC - Vocational Training July 1, 2021
Brittanie Demps Teacher Aide DOC - Columbia C.I. July 6, 2021
Kristina Lamb Mathematics Content Specialist DOE - Test Development Center July 15, 2021
Janay Scott Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC South Florida RC July 22, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position
None to Report

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 
None to Report

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Re-Appointments (All Employees)



Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type
Bethany Ross Staff Assistant II Workforce Development May 28, 2021 Resigned
Elizabeth Daniels Program Coordinator for Adult Education Continuing Workforce Education May 28, 2021 Resigned
Mike Vickers Computer Technology Lab Manager Business Industry and Technology May 28, 2021 Deceased
Raymond Watson Landscaper Facilities May 28, 2021 Resigned

Richard Norman
Business & Workforce Development, Director

Workforce Development May 28, 2021 Resigned
Florenta Wygant Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC - Charlotte CI May 31, 2021 Resigned
Lori Prudom Math Faculty Math and Science May 31, 2021 Retired
Tiffany Hall Nursing Faculty Nursing May 31, 2021 Resigned
Brooke Stone Dual Enrollment Coordinator Dual Enrollment June 9, 2021 Resigned
Christine Brown Career and Academic Advisor Student Success and Retention June 24, 2021 Resigned
Andrea Minnis Learning Consultant Manager Department of Juvenile Justice June 30, 2021 Retired
David Swanson Senior Assessment Coordinator DOE - Postsecondary Assessment June 30, 2021 Contract Not Renewed
Tracey Woodard Dean Academic Affairs June 30, 2021 Contract Not Renewed

E.E. Eunice
Florida Public Safety Institute, Executive 
Director Florida Public Safety Institute

June 30, 2021
Retired

Jim Smart Math Faculty Math and Science June 30, 2021 Resigned
Charlie Davis Student Life, Director Student Life June 30, 2021 Contract Not Renewed
Olivia Thomas Program Specialist Workforce Development June 30, 2021 Resigned

Richard Murgo
Dean of Behavioral, Social Science & 
Education Academic Affairs June 30, 2021 Retired

Richard Lee Client Support Specialist Client Support July 1, 2021 Resigned

Robin Colson
Program Coordinator for Information 
Technology, Online & Professional 
Development

Workforce Online July 1, 2021 Resigned
Jewell Threatts Admissions Navigator Admission and Records July 2, 2021 Resigned
Phillip Register Campus Police Officer Campus Police July 6, 2021 Resigned

Alice Maxwell
Strategic Communication & Change 
Management Communications and Marketing July 8, 2021 Resigned

Doug Pleas Custodial Shift Supervisor Facilities July 16, 2021 Resigned
Harry Brunson HVAC Program Specialist Advanced Manufacturing July 19, 2021 Resigned

Steven Walls
Transportation & Logistics Program 
Coordinator Continuing Workforce Education July 19, 2021 Resigned

Name Position Department Employer Position
Ayo Hinkson Learning Consultant Department of Juvenile Justice Self Notary Public
Nikki Pettineo Culinary Career/Technical Educator DOC - Vocational Training Chef Nikki LLC Chef
Sheryl Wilhoit Veteran's Affair Coordinator Financial Aid Bear Star Bakery Owner/Baker

Name Position Department Office Position
None to Report

Separations (All Employees) 

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
  
SUBJECT: Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Oliver (June 2021) 

 
 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoices from Bryant Miller Oliver, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to collective bargaining process. 
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the September 19, 2016 
Board Meeting 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund.  The current amount due is 
$1,175.00 for June 2021 and $750.00 for June 2021. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 

 
 



Tallahassee Community College
Barbara K. Wills, Chief Business Officer, Vice President for 
Administrative Services
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

June 11, 2021
75238

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-012617

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

05/14/2021 DMH Attend pre-meeting, bargaining and post-meeting 1.50

05/14/2021 JCC Attend pre-meeting, bargaining and post-meeting 1.50

Current Services 3.00 $750.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 1.50 $250.00 $375.00

Denise M. Heekin 1.50 $250.00 $375.00

Total Current Work $750.00

Previous Balance Due $2,675.00

Balance Due $3,425.00



Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
1545 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 300

Tallahassee, FL  32308
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

June 11, 2021
75238

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



Barbara K. Wills
Chief Business Officer, Vice President for Administrative 
Services
Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

July 8, 2021
75396

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-012617

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

06/08/2021 JCC Telephone conference with client (B. Jones) / annual contract 
employee

0.30

06/08/2021 JCC Review documents / analyze issues 0.50

06/08/2021 JCC Telephone conference with client (B. Jones) / annual contract 
employee

0.20

06/08/2021 DMH Review Collective Bargaining Agreement and analyze issue about 
continuing contract

0.40

06/09/2021 JCC Review bargaining proposals 0.80

06/09/2021 JCC Analyze issues / failure to negotiate 0.80

06/14/2021 JCC Review correspondence / UFF 0.30

06/25/2021 JCC Legal research / dress codes 1.20

06/25/2021 JCC Telephone conference with client (B. Jones) / dress codes 0.20

Current Services 4.70 $1,175.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 4.30 $250.00 $1,075.00

Denise M. Heekin 0.40 $250.00 $100.00



Payments

06/29/2021 Payment ACH rec'd 6/29/21 Invoices 74966, 75071 2,675.00

2,675.00

Total Current Work $1,175.00

Previous Balance Due $750.00

Balance Due $1,925.00

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
1545 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 300

Tallahassee, FL  32308
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

July 08, 2021
75396

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Provider 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities  - Amendment 8  
This amendment is to reallocate funds to student certifications and instruction related to 
class participation in Intro to Welding, 3D Printing, and Certified Production Specialist.  
The award amount remains the same. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Strengthening Career & Technical Education for the 21st 
Century Act CTE, Entrepreneurship Education & Training (EET) - Amendment 3 
This amendment is to reallocate funds to Educational Materials and Supplies.  The award 
amount remains the same. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Support for Implementation and Maintenance of Charter 
Schools Federal Front - Administrative - Amendment 1 
This amendment increased the award by $64,654.41 to cover indirect cost recalculation 
and additional full-time position. New award amount is $187,712.41. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Support for Implementation and Maintenance of Charter 
Schools Federal Grant - Technical Assistance - Amendment 1 
This amendment increased the award by $4,844.88 to cover indirect cost recalculation and 
identify contracted services and other professional services contracts. New award total 
$802,465.88. 
 



 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities Phase 3 - 
Amendments 1-3 
These amendments reallocated funding and a no-cost extension through 6/30/2022.  The 
award amount remains the same. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Test Development Center - Amendment 2 
Continuation and increase in funding for TCC will provide contracted staff positions for K-12 
Assessment Development. These positions are essential to the continued development of 
state academic assessments. The project is for a three-year period from 7/1/20 through 
6/30/23. The contract amount is for $7,013,761.92.  Indirect costs are not allowed by 
statute.  
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy Act TCC- CTE 
Outreach and Recruitment Adult Education Leadership FY20/21 - Amendment 1 
This amendment extends the award date to 8/31/21. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Postsecondary Assessment FY 22 - 24  
TCC will provide the support, coordination and implementation of activities related to the 
provisions of the development, administration, scoring and reporting fifty-four, computer-
based examinations.  The project is for a three-year period from 7/1/21 through 6/30/24.  
The contract amount is for $911,261.00 for this year with an indirect cost of 10%.  
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 
This project provides contracted staff responsible for the implementation of Compass 100 
hybrid and Thinking for a Change curricula within DOC facilities throughout Florida.  The 
amount of this award is $2,172,613.42, including an indirect rate of 10%.  The current 
funding period is from 7/1/21 through 6/30/22. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Take Stock in Children  
This award is to provide resource for students from grades 6-12 in Gadsden, Leon and 
Wakulla counties to increase the number of potential first generation-in-college students 
who successfully receive a college education. The award is for $56,218, including an 
indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is from 7/1/21 through 6/30/22. 
 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region XV Trust Award 2021-2022 
This continuing award will provide the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission 
(CJSTC) with approved advanced and specialized training courses through Florida Public 
Safety Institute to law enforcement officers statewide. The amount of the award is 
$296,800, including an indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is from 7/1/2021 through 
6/30/2022.  
 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region III Trust Award 2021-2022 
This continuing award will provide the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission 
(CJSTC) with approved advanced and specialized training courses through Florida Public 
Safety Institute for local law enforcement officers. The amount of the award is $118,720, 
including an indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is from 7/1/2021 through 
6/30/2022.  
 
 
 



Verizon Innovative Learning Program for Rural Young Women 2021-2022 
Additional funding to support a summer of 2021 program providing STEMinstruction to 100 
youth. The amount of the award is $80,000 with an indirect cost rate of 10%. The funding 
period is through 8/31/2022.  
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Vocational Instruction 
This project provides vocational instruction and programming (i.e., textbooks, consumable 
supplies, industry exams) to DOC inmate-students at regional facilities. The award is for 
$1,935,809.04, including an indirect cost rate of 10%. The funding period is from 7/1/21 
through 6/30/22. 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities  
Amendment 7 was approved at the June 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Strengthening Career & Technical Education for the 21st 
Century Act CTE, Entrepreneurship Education & Training (EET)  
Amendments 1 & 2 were approved at the April 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Support for Implementation and Maintenance of Charter 
Schools Federal Grant - Administrative  
Initial award was approved at the April 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Support for Implementation and Maintenance of Charter 
Schools Federal Grant - Technical Assistance  
Initial award was approved at the April 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities Phase 3  
Initial award was approved at the April 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
Florida Department of Education – Test Development Center 
Amendment 1 was approved at the April 2021 Board of Trustees meeting  
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy Act TCC- CTE 
Outreach and Recruitment Adult Education Leadership FY20/21  
Initial award was approved at the September 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Postsecondary Assessment FY 22 - 24 
This is a renewal of a three-year period award. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Compass 100 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Take Stock in Children  
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region XV Trust Award 2021-2022 
This is an annual renewal. 



 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement – Region III Trust Award 2021-2022 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Verizon Innovative Learning Program for Rural Young Women 2021-2022 
Initial award was approved at the April 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Corrections - Vocational Instruction 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the new awards is $477,942.11. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
Florida Department of Education - Holocaust Education Task Force FY21 - Amendment 1 
This amendment increased the award to $100,000 and extended the award period to 
8/31/21. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adults with Disabilities Grant Program  - Amendment 1 
This amendment increased the award by $5,000.  New award total is $25,000. 
 
Florida Sterling Foundation FY 21/22 
This award is to provide executive staff support to direct the Sterling Council. The Florida 
Sterling Council was established in 1992 as a not-for-profit 501(c)3 corporation endorsed 
by the Executive Office of the Governor. The mission is “Serving Florida as the epicenter of 
business quality through assessment, training, and recognition for performance Excellence 
and proven results.” The amount of this contract is $213,750, including an indirect cost rate 
of 14%. The funding period is 7/1/21 through 6/30/22. 
 
Florida College Systems Activities Association Contract FY 21/22  
This award is to provide an executive staff position, and two support positions to direct the 
Florida College System Activities Association. The Florida College System Activities 
Association provides academic and athletic opportunities for students. The amount of this 
contract is $189,776, including an indirect cost rate of 2%. The funding period is 7/1/21 
through 6/30/22.       
 



 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Florida Department of Education - Holocaust Education Task Force FY21  
Initial award was approved at the November 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adults with Disabilities Grant Program   
Initial award was approved at the November 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Sterling Foundation FY 21/22 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Florida College Systems Activities Association Contract FY 21/22 
This is an annual renewal. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the awards is $29,971.10. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
 ______________________ 
SUBJECT: Architect Invoices 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the architect invoices submitted for the months of 
June and July 2021.  
 
Overview and Background 
The College is now under contract with five architectural firms; Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 
PA, BKJ, Inc. Architecture, Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc., DAG Architects Inc., and 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC to provide architectural and engineering services for 
projects at all sites and counties. To ensure quality, the five firms will be assigned projects on 
a rotational basis with standardized hourly fees. 
 
Architects I Lewis + Whitlock, PA - $56,140.00 
BKJ, Inc. Architecture - $13,400.00 
Clemons, Rutherford & Associates, Inc. - $0.00 
DAG Architects, Inc. - $3,530.00 
Fitzgerald Collaborative Group, LLC - $0.00 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board last authorized architect invoices at the June 21, 2021 meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funds for minor projects and Master Plans are available from the Capital Improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of architectural invoices as presented. 
 

 



INVOICE NO. #4 (17320.8.4)

TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page      1   of    1    Pages
        Attn:  Accounts Payable Federal I.D. No: 59-3616761
        444 Appleyard Drive
        Tallahassee, Florida 32304 Purchase Order No: PO-011147-1

Project Name:  
FROM:  Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A.  
             206 W. Virginia St. DATE: 6/3/2021
             Tallahassee, Florida 32301

LESS 
PERCENT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT AMOUNT DUE

DESCRIPTION TOTAL FEE COMPLETE BILLED REMAINING THIS INVOICE
Design Development $29,136.00 100% $29,136.00 $0.00 $0.00
100% Construction Documents $43,704.00 100% $43,704.00 $0.00 $0.00
Bid / Permitting $4,856.00 100% $4,856.00 $0.00 $0.00
Construction Administration $19,424.00 30% $0.00 $13,596.80 $5,827.20
Reimbursements - Printing $690.00 100% $690.00 $0.00 $0.00

GRAND TOTALS $97,810.00 $78,386.00 $13,596.80 $5,827.20

Invoice Total $5,827.20
                                                             * Amount payable directly to: (    )
                                                             * Amount payable directly to: ( ) *

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

Rodney L. Lewis, Principal
  (Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

Welding Lab - Build-Out

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-011147 - 1

Purchase Order Date 08/27/2019

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 1 of 3

Purchasing & General Services Director

Supplier:

Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, PA
206 W Virginia Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301
United States of America

Ship To:

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America

Comments:

PJ-0240 Welding Technologies Lab – Architect Fees; Contact: 
Trey Kimbrel, kimbrelt@tcc.fl.edu , 850-201-8750

Change Order No. 1 INTERNAL ONLY to correct accounting; 
canceling original lines and adding revised lines to include 
correct accounting worktags. PO total and number are still the 
same.

Bill To:

Tallahassee Community College
ATTN:  Accounts Payable
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895
United States of America
(850) 201-8525

Currency Total Lines Amount Total Tax Amount Total PO Amount
USD 97,811.00 0.00 97,811.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-011147 - 1

Purchase Order Date 08/27/2019

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 2 of 3

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

1  Proposal for Professional 
Architectural Services for 
TCC’s new Welding Lab a 
the Advanced 
Manufacturing Training 
Center, per attached 
proposal dated April 24, 
2019. Scope includes 
services required for 
demolition, design, 
construction documents 
and construction 
administration for the 
renovation of approximately 
5,800 square feet of an 
existing metal building as 
well as exterior components 
on the west side of 
Campus. Total basic 
services include Design 
Development, 100% 
Construction Documents, 
Bidding/Permitting and 
Construction 
Administration. **Ref: TCC 
RFQ 2017-03; 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services**

   0.00

2  Printing Services Include:
                                                                
Design Development 
Submittal - 10 Sheets 
(24x36) / 2 sets
                                                                
100% CD Submittal - 15 
Sheets (24x36) / 5 sets
                                                                
100% CD Specs - 600 
Sheets (8.5x11) / 5 sets

   0.00

3  Printing Services Include:
Design Development 
Submittal - 10 Sheets 
(24x36) / 2 sets
100% CD Submittal - 15 
Sheets (24x36) / 5 sets
100% CD Specs - 600 
Sheets (8.5x11) / 5 sets

   690.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-011147 - 1

Purchase Order Date 08/27/2019

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 3 of 3

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

4  Proposal for Professional 
Architectural Services for 
TCC’s new Welding Lab a 
the Advanced 
Manufacturing Training 
Center, per attached 
proposal dated April 24, 
2019. Scope includes 
services required for 
demolition, design, 
construction documents 
and construction 
administration for the 
renovation of approximately 
5,800 square feet of an 
existing metal building as 
well as exterior components 
on the west side of 
Campus. Total basic 
services include Design 
Development, 100% 
Construction Documents, 
Bidding/Permitting and 
Construction 
Administration. **Ref: TCC 
RFQ 2017-03; 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services**

   97,121.00

Messages
Please send all Invoices to Accounts Payable -  "AcctPay@tcc.fl.edu"
Please include the TCC Purchase Order Number on all invoices.
To ensure timely payments, TCC requires the College's purchase order number to be included on all invoices submitted for payment. Invoices received without 
the referenced purchase order number will require additional confirmation from the requesting department of the applicable purchase order number, which will 
delay TCC's remittance of the invoice.

Any questions related to payment of supplier invoices should be directed to the TCC Accounts Payable Office at (850) 201-8565.

 



TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page      1   of    1    Pages
        Attn:  Accounts Payable Federal I.D. No: 59-3616761
        444 Appleyard Drive
        Tallahassee, Florida 32304 Purchase Order No: PO-011147-1

Project Name:  
FROM:  Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A.  
             206 W. Virginia St. DATE: 6/29/2021
             Tallahassee, Florida 32301

LESS 
PERCENT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT AMOUNT DUE

DESCRIPTION TOTAL FEE COMPLETE BILLED REMAINING THIS INVOICE
Design Development $29,136.00 100% $29,136.00 $0.00 $0.00
100% Construction Documents $43,704.00 100% $43,704.00 $0.00 $0.00
Bid / Permitting $4,856.00 100% $4,856.00 $0.00 $0.00
Construction Administration $19,424.00 50% $5,827.20 $9,712.00 $3,884.80
Reimbursements - Printing $690.00 100% $690.00 $0.00 $0.00

GRAND TOTALS $97,810.00 $84,213.20 $9,712.00 $3,884.80

Invoice Total $3,884.80
                                                             * Amount payable directly to: (    )
                                                             * Amount payable directly to: ( ) *

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

Rodney L. Lewis, Principal
  (Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

Welding Lab - Build-Out

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:

INVOICE NO. #5 (17320.8.5)



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-011147 - 1

Purchase Order Date 08/27/2019

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 1 of 3

Purchasing & General Services Director

Supplier:

Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, PA
206 W Virginia Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301
United States of America

Ship To:

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America

Comments:

PJ-0240 Welding Technologies Lab – Architect Fees; Contact: 
Trey Kimbrel, kimbrelt@tcc.fl.edu , 850-201-8750

Change Order No. 1 INTERNAL ONLY to correct accounting; 
canceling original lines and adding revised lines to include 
correct accounting worktags. PO total and number are still the 
same.

Bill To:

Tallahassee Community College
ATTN:  Accounts Payable
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895
United States of America
(850) 201-8525

Currency Total Lines Amount Total Tax Amount Total PO Amount
USD 97,811.00 0.00 97,811.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-011147 - 1

Purchase Order Date 08/27/2019

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 2 of 3

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

1  Proposal for Professional 
Architectural Services for 
TCC’s new Welding Lab a 
the Advanced 
Manufacturing Training 
Center, per attached 
proposal dated April 24, 
2019. Scope includes 
services required for 
demolition, design, 
construction documents 
and construction 
administration for the 
renovation of approximately 
5,800 square feet of an 
existing metal building as 
well as exterior components 
on the west side of 
Campus. Total basic 
services include Design 
Development, 100% 
Construction Documents, 
Bidding/Permitting and 
Construction 
Administration. **Ref: TCC 
RFQ 2017-03; 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services**

   0.00

2  Printing Services Include:
                                                                
Design Development 
Submittal - 10 Sheets 
(24x36) / 2 sets
                                                                
100% CD Submittal - 15 
Sheets (24x36) / 5 sets
                                                                
100% CD Specs - 600 
Sheets (8.5x11) / 5 sets

   0.00

3  Printing Services Include:
Design Development 
Submittal - 10 Sheets 
(24x36) / 2 sets
100% CD Submittal - 15 
Sheets (24x36) / 5 sets
100% CD Specs - 600 
Sheets (8.5x11) / 5 sets

   690.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-011147 - 1

Purchase Order Date 08/27/2019

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 3 of 3

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

4  Proposal for Professional 
Architectural Services for 
TCC’s new Welding Lab a 
the Advanced 
Manufacturing Training 
Center, per attached 
proposal dated April 24, 
2019. Scope includes 
services required for 
demolition, design, 
construction documents 
and construction 
administration for the 
renovation of approximately 
5,800 square feet of an 
existing metal building as 
well as exterior components 
on the west side of 
Campus. Total basic 
services include Design 
Development, 100% 
Construction Documents, 
Bidding/Permitting and 
Construction 
Administration. **Ref: TCC 
RFQ 2017-03; 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services**

   97,121.00

Messages
Please send all Invoices to Accounts Payable -  "AcctPay@tcc.fl.edu"
Please include the TCC Purchase Order Number on all invoices.
To ensure timely payments, TCC requires the College's purchase order number to be included on all invoices submitted for payment. Invoices received without 
the referenced purchase order number will require additional confirmation from the requesting department of the applicable purchase order number, which will 
delay TCC's remittance of the invoice.

Any questions related to payment of supplier invoices should be directed to the TCC Accounts Payable Office at (850) 201-8565.

 



TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page      1   of    1    Pages

        Attn:  Accounts Payable Federal I.D. No: 59-3616761

        444 Appleyard Drive

        Tallahassee, Florida 32304 Purchase Order No:

Project Name:  

FROM:  Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A.  

             206 W. Virginia St. DATE: 6/3/2021

             Tallahassee, Florida 32301

LESS 

PERCENT AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT DUE

DESCRIPTION TOTAL FEE COMPLETE REMAINING BILLED THIS INVOICE

Advanced Schematic $7,778.00 100% $0.00 $7,778.00 $0.00

Design Development $23,333.00 100% $0.00 $0.00 $23,333.00

Construcion Documents $27,222.00 0% $27,222.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bid / Permitting $3,889.00 0% $3,889.00 $0.00 $0.00

Construction Administration $15,556.00 0% $15,556.00 $0.00 $0.00

Printing $760.00 0% $760.00 $0.00 $0.00
Engineering Services

FL Model Energy Code Compliance $750.00 0% $750.00 $0.00 $0.00

Telecommunications Design $6,600.00 35% $4,290.00 $0.00 $2,310.00

Intrusion Detection/Access Control/Surveillance $3,600.00 0% $3,600.00 $0.00 $0.00

Audio / Visual Design $4,900.00 35% $3,185.00 $0.00 $1,715.00

Record Drawings $1,000.00 0% $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special Inspections - 2 way radio comms $2,000.00 0% $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

Two-way RF Radio DAS Design $1,300.00 0% $1,300.00 $0.00 $0.00

GRAND TOTALS $98,688.00 $63,552.00 $7,778.00 $27,358.00

Invoice Total $27,358.00

                                                             * Amount payable directly to: (    )

                                                             * Amount payable directly to: ( ) *

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

Rodney L. Lewis, Principal

  (Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:

TCC Innovation Center

Phase 1 - 2nd Floor Renovation

INVOICE NO. #2 (20390.2.2)

PO-013324-1 



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-013324 - 1

Purchase Order Date 02/09/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 1 of 2

Purchasing & General Services Director

Supplier:

Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, PA
206 W Virginia Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301
United States of America

Ship To:

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America

Comments:

PJ-0267 CFI - Phase 1 - 2nd Floor Renovation – A/E Services
Contact: Trey Kimbrel, kimbrelt@tcc.fl.edu , 850-201-8750
CO1 - Correction to RFQ# in item description: 
** REF: TCC RFQ 2020-02; Recommendation for Architectural 
Services**

Bill To:

Tallahassee Community College
ATTN:  Accounts Payable
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895
United States of America
(850) 201-8525

Currency Total Lines Amount Total Tax Amount Total PO Amount
USD 98,688.00 0.00 98,688.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Change Order

Purchase Order Number PO-013324 - 1

Purchase Order Date 02/09/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 2 of 2

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

1  Basic A/E services for the 
design development, 
documentation, permitting 
and construction 
administration of new 
infrastructure, general 
spaces and tenant build-
outs within the Center for 
Innovation 2nd floor; and 
are based on preliminary 
design concepts previously 
developed by ALW and will 
include the following: 
1.            New infrastructure 
for telecom and security on 
each floor (see attached H2 
proposal for further clarity)
2.            Improvements and 
finishes to existing 
restrooms and other walls 
scheduled to remain.
3.            New accessible 
restroom
4.            New second floor 
tenant arrangements
5.            New meeting and 
common spaces
6.            New furnishings
Specifics per attached 
proposal dated February 2, 
2021.
 **REF: TCC RFQ 2020-02; 
Recommendation for 
Architectural Services**

   77,778.00

2  Printing as needed.    760.00

3  Engineering services as 
needed.

   20,150.00

Messages
Tallahassee Community College does not discriminate against any person on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic information, 
marital status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status in its programs and activities

VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT: In accordance with State of Florida Office of the Governor Executive Order Number 11-02, the firm shall utilize the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all persons employed during the contract term by the firm to perform 
employment duties within Florida and all persons (including sub-consultants) assigned by the firm to perform work pursuant to the contract with Tallahassee 
Community College.

Please send all Invoices to Accounts Payable -  "AcctPay@tcc.fl.edu"
To ensure timely payments, TCC requires the College's purchase order number to be included on all invoices submitted for payment.

Any questions related to payment of supplier invoices should be directed to the TCC Accounts Payable Office at (850) 201-8565.



TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page      1   of    1    Pages

        Attn:  Accounts Payable Federal I.D. No: 59-3616761

        444 Appleyard Drive

        Tallahassee, Florida 32304 Purchase Order No:

Project Name:  

FROM:  Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A.  

             206 W. Virginia St. DATE: 6/3/2021

             Tallahassee, Florida 32301

LESS 

PERCENT AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT DUE

DESCRIPTION TOTAL FEE COMPLETE REMAINING BILLED THIS INVOICE

Design Documents $17,880.00 100% $0.00 $0.00 $17,880.00

100% Construction Documents $15,645.00 0% $15,645.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bid / Permitting $2,235.00 0% $2,235.00 $0.00 $0.00

Construction Administration $8,940.00 0% $8,940.00 $0.00 $0.00
Engineering Services

Telecommunications Design $1,800.00 35% $1,170.00 $0.00 $630.00

Audio / Visual Design $1,600.00 35% $1,040.00 $0.00 $560.00

GRAND TOTALS $48,100.00 $29,030.00 $0.00 $19,070.00

Invoice Total $19,070.00

                                                             * Amount payable directly to: (    )

                                                             * Amount payable directly to: ( ) *

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

Rodney L. Lewis, Principal

  (Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:

TCC Innovation Center

2nd Floor Tenant Fit Out

INVOICE NO. 20390.4.1

PO-013623



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Purchase Order

Purchase Order Number PO-013623

Purchase Order Date 05/11/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 1 of 2

Purchasing & General Services Director

Supplier:

Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, PA
206 W Virginia Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301
United States of America

Ship To:

Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America

Comments:

PJ-0267 CFI - Phase 1 - 2nd Floor Renovation – A/E Add 
Services - Full Tenant Fit-Out
Contact: Trey Kimbrel, kimbrelt@tcc.fl.edu , 850-201-8750
** REF: TCC RFQ 2020-02; Recommendation for Architectural 
Services**

Bill To:

Tallahassee Community College
ATTN:  Accounts Payable
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304-2895
United States of America
(850) 201-8525

Currency Total Lines Amount Total Tax Amount Total PO Amount
USD 48,100.00 0.00 48,100.00



Tallahassee Community College
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304
United States of America
Federal ID: 59-1141270
Tax Exemption ID: 85-80-125307-72C8

Purchase Order

Purchase Order Number PO-013623

Purchase Order Date 05/11/2021

Payment Terms Net 30

Requestor Cindy Wommack

Phone Number (850) 201-6200

 

Page 2 of 2

Service Lines

Line Number Item Name Description Start Date End Date Due Date Amount

1  Additional A/E services to 
include all tenant space in 
the project area. ALW 
previously received 
authorization to complete 
the design and 
documentation of the 
renovation to several 
shared spaces and 
Neighborhood 1. This 
proposal adds 
approximately 3,700 sq. ft. 
to the project area and 
includes additional shared 
spaces as well as 
Neighborhoods 2 and 3 for 
the Center for Innovation 
2nd floor improvements. 
Specifics per attached 
proposal dated April 22, 
2021. ** REF: TCC RFQ 
2020-02; Recommendation 
for Architectural Services**

   44,700.00

2  Engineering services for 
Telecommunications and 
Audio/Visual Design as 
needed.

   3,400.00

Messages
Tallahassee Community College does not discriminate against any person on the basis of age, color, disability, ethnicity, gender identity, genetic information, 
marital status, national origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status in its programs and activities

VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT: In accordance with State of Florida Office of the Governor Executive Order Number 11-02, the firm shall utilize the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all persons employed during the contract term by the firm to perform 
employment duties within Florida and all persons (including sub-consultants) assigned by the firm to perform work pursuant to the contract with Tallahassee 
Community College.

Please send all Invoices to Accounts Payable -  "AcctPay@tcc.fl.edu"
To ensure timely payments, TCC requires the College's purchase order number to be included on all invoices submitted for payment.

Any questions related to payment of supplier invoices should be directed to the TCC Accounts Payable Office at (850) 201-8565.



INVOICE NO. 2

TO:  Tallahassee Community College Page:   1   of   1   Pages

        ATTN: Accounts Payable

        444 Appleyard Drive TCC Purchase Order No.:   PO‐013589

        Tallahassee, Florida 32304‐2895

Project Name:        

FROM:  BKJ Inc. Architecture

              1621 Physicians Drive

              Tallahassee, Florida 32308 Date: 6/23/21

LESS

PERCENT PREVIOUSLY AMOUNT DUE

SERVICE TOTAL FEE COMPLETE AMOUNT DUE BILLED THIS INVOICE

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Existing Conditions $8,460.00 100% $8,460.00 $8,460.00 $0.00

BASIC SERVICES

Preliminary Schematic Design $21,420.00 100% $21,420.00 $8,020.00 $13,400.00

OTHER PROJECT COST

Reimbursable Expenses

GRAND TOTALS $29,880.00 $29,880.00 $16,480.00 $13,400.00

$13,400.00

Please remit payment to the following address:

BKJ, Inc. Architecture

1621 Physicians Drive

Tallahassee, FL 32308

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT BY:

(Signature of Principal)          (Typed Name and Title)

Student Union (SU‐ bldg #35)                                       

Lobby/1st Floor Renovations

THE PRESENT STATUS OF THE ACCOUNT IS AS FOLLOWS:

  Total due Architect/Engineer

Thank you for your business. Please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions. We appreciate the 

opportunity to provide architectural services to your organization. 

Bonnie Davenport AIA, President

Page 1 of 1



Tallahassee Community College Invoice number 20086_0621 Invoice date 06/28/2021

Page 1

Invoice total 3,530.00

20086_0521 05/28/2021 4,790.00 4,790.00

20086_0621 06/28/2021 3,530.00 3,530.00

Total 8,320.00 3,530.00 4,790.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aging Summary

Invoice Number Invoice Date Outstanding Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90 Over 120

We appreciate your business. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience to: DAG Architects Inc., 1223 Airport Road, Destin, 
FL 32541.  If you have any questions, please contact Gail at 850.337.6443 or gennis@dagarchitects.com.

Tasks 3 & 4 - Bidding & Negotiations & 
Construction Administration

2,930.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task 2 - 100% Construction Documents 3,530.00 100.00 0.00 3,530.00 3,530.00

Task 1 - 75% Construction Documents 4,790.00 100.00 4,790.00 4,790.00 0.00

Total 11,250.00 73.96 4,790.00 8,320.00 3,530.00

Description
Contract

Amount

Percent

Complete

Prior

Billed

Total

Billed

Current

Billed

Professional Architectural Services

PO- 013582

Tallahassee Community College
Don Herr
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

Invoice number 20086_0621
Date 06/28/2021

Project 20086  TCC STAIRWELL DESIGN 
UPDATES



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         

Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

   
SUBJECT: TCC Foundation Update 

 
 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TCC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TCC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors and number of gifts. 
 
The Foundation would also like to extend an invitation to DBOT members to the following 
events: 
September 14, 2021:  President’s Circle Dinner, 6:00 – 9:00 p.m., FPAC 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
None required.  Report provided for information only. 

 



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 20/21

 July - June



TCC Foundation - Funds Spent

FY 20/21



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 21/22

 July 1-23



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         
Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

   

SUBJECT: TCC Foundation – Gift Acceptance 

 

 
Item Description 
The following is a request for the TCC District Board of Trustees to consider accepting items donated 
to TCC Foundation for use by the College. 
 
Overview and Background 
Per TCC Policy 03-12, gifts of art, real property or equipment intended for use by the College or 
Foundation must be approved by the President prior to acceptance. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Gifts must be presented to the TCC District Board of Trustees for a vote of acceptance by the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
There are insurance cost associated with this gift. 
 
Recommended Action 
Accept gift as presented. 

 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Dr. Jim Murdaugh, President, Tallahassee Community College 

FROM:  Heather Mitchell, Vice President for Resource Development 
  Executive Director, TCC Foundation 

DATE:  August 16, 2021 

RE:  Gift Acceptance – Donation of Art 

 

 

The TCC Foundation has purchased, as part of its Arts Campaign, an outdoor sculpture created 
by local artist Mark Dickson.  This piece was temporarily placed at the entrance of the Fine & 
Performing Arts Center during one of Mr. Dickson’s shows in the Fine Arts Gallery. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Title:  Sky Sentinel 
Artist:  Mark Dickson 
Date Created:  1995 
Medium:  Stainless Steel 
Dimensions: 105" x 40" x 36" 
Fair Market Value:  $8,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Foundation would like to transfer this art piece to the College for their private collection.   
 
 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with County School Boards and Public 

Charter Schools 
 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
each of the three districts in the Tallahassee Community College service district for annual 
approval as required by Florida law. This items also includes agreements with the public 
charter schools in our service district 
 
Overview and Background 
In compliance with Florida Statute 1007.271(4), the members of the Articulation 
Councils of three districts in the Tallahassee Community College service district for 
annual approval as required by Florida law. This item also includes agreements 
with the public charter schools in our service district. 
 
The agreements identify College and School District responsibilities for informing 
students and parents about dual enrollment; they address faculty qualifications for 
teaching; they define college readiness scores and high school and college GPA 
requirements as well as procedures for exceptions; they identify maximum and 
minimum course loads; they specify responsibilities for testing and record keeping; 
and they include other procedures and timelines. 
 
This item includes the following charter schools: Crossroad Academy and Florida State 
University Schools.  
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees, lab, or online course fees. The 
school districts pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students taking 
courses on TCC's campus.  This also includes online courses. The school districts 
also pay for the cost of the instructor if the course is taught at the high school site 
by a TCC instructor. The school districts are not charged tuition for summer 



enrollments. Also, school districts do not pay tuition for students who take 
courses on the high school campus. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approves these agreements annually. 
 
Recommended Action 

That the Board approve the articulation agreements. 
 
 

 



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 
Gadsden County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Gadsden County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Gadsden County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 ENC 1101 



English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 

dual enrollment program 
 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  



 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/
http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 



 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 



December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  



Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 

TCC 
 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 



1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 



TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if that 
student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Gadsden County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Gadsden County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Gadsden County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Leon County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Leon County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Leon County and the President 
of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  
 

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 



Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 

dual enrollment program 
 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 



Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
 
 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/
http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 
 

VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 



 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 



December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 
 



Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 

XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 

TCC 
 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 



1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of  



 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 

 
By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Leon County, Florida and The District Board 
of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and caused it 
to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance with Section 
1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Leon County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Leon County School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Wakulla County Schools and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla County, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla County and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 
 



 
III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 

dual enrollment 
 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 



 
 

IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4: Complete the Early Admission Form with your guidance counselor. 
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Early Admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 

dual enrollment program 
 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 

 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 
course expectations 

 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 
TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 



continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 

December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 



December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 
chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 
 
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 

before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 



The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 
 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 
costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
 



Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 
that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 



period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 
 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla County, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla County School Board 

 

    
Date  Superintendent, Wakulla County School District 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Crossroad Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Crossroad 
Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Crossroad Academy and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 
 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 



Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/
http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 
 
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Crossroad Academy, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Crossroad Academy School Board 
 

    
Date  Principal, Crossroad Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Florida State University School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Florida State 
University School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Florida State University School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

• Copy of test scores  
• Permission to register form 
• Permission for early admission form 
• High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 

 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class 
 

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class 
 

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Florida State University School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Florida State University School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Florida State University High School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools 

 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements between the College and 
private schools in TCC’s service area. 
 
Overview and Background 
Florida Statute 1007.271(24), states that postsecondary institutions must enter into 
dual enrollment articulation agreements with qualified private secondary schools in its 
geographic service area seeking to offer dual enrollment courses to its students. TCC 
has worked with the local private schools that have requested access to dual enrollment 
for their students. These agreements parallel the agreements made with public 
school boards. This year TCC is proposing agreements with Community Christian 
School, Community Leadership Academy, John Paul II Catholic School, Maclay 
School, North Florida Christian School, Providence Christian School, Robert F 
Munroe School, Savary Academy, Tree of Life School and Wakulla Christian School. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Dual enrollment students pay no tuition, fees. lab, or online course fees. The 
school districts pay the standard rate per credit hour, $71.98, for students taking 
courses on TCC's campus. This also includes online courses. The school districts 
also pay for the cost of the instructor if the course is taught at the high school site by 
a TCC instructor. The school districts are not charged tuition for summer 
enrollments. Also, school districts do not pay tuition for students who take courses 
on the high school campus. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approves these agreements annually. 
 
Recommended Action 

  That the Board approve the articulation agreements. 



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Community Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Community 
Christian School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Christian School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Christian School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Community Christian School 
 

    
Date  Director, Community Christian School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Community Leadership Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Community 
Leadership Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this 
agreement shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Community Leadership 
Academy and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Community Leadership Academy, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Community Leadership Academy School Board  
 

    
Date  Principal, Community Leadership Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
John Paul II Catholic School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of John Paul II 
Catholic School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of John Paul II Catholic School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 

III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 



 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 
 



IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 
participate in the dual enrollment program 

 
Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 

 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of John Paul II Catholic School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
   John Paul II Catholic School Board 
 

    
Date  Director, John Paul II Catholic School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Maclay School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Maclay School, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Maclay School and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Maclay School, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Maclay School Board 

 

    
Date  Head of Upper School, Maclay School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
North Florida Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of North Florida 
Christian School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of North Florida Christian School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

 
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of North Florida Christian School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  North Florida Christian School 
 

    
Date  Head of School, North Florida Christian School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Providence Christian Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Providence 
Christian Academy, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement 
shall commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Providence Christian Academy 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Providence Christian Academy, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Providence Christian Academy Board 

 

    
Date  Director, Providence Christian Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Robert F. Munroe High School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Robert F. Munroe 
High School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Robert F. Munroe High School 
and the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Robert F. Munroe High School, Florida and 
The District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Robert F. Munroe Day School Board 

 

    
Date  Principal, Robert F. Munroe Day School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Savary Academy and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Savary Academy, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Savary Academy and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Savary Academy, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Savary Academy  
 

    
Date  Principal, Savary Academy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Tree of Life School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Tree of Life School, 
hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall commence 
upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Tree of Life School and the 
President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or Statewide 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to Statewide in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade 
Statewide or Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test will be required to place into 
college-level Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual 
enrollment program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade Statewide or 
Florida Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English 
and Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case by case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s Academic 
Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Tree of Life School, Florida and The District 
Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this agreement and 
caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in accordance 
with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, School Board of Directors 
  Tree of Life 
 

    
Date  Principal, Tree of Life School  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2021 – 2022 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement  
Wakulla Christian School and Tallahassee Community College 

 
Introduction 
The Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement, as required by Section 1007.271(21), Florida 
Statutes, is made by and between the District Board of Trustees of Tallahassee Community 
College, hereinafter referred to as TCC, and the District School Board of Wakulla Christian 
School, hereinafter referred to as the School Board.  The term of this agreement shall 
commence upon signing and shall end July 31, 2022.  
 
The local Articulation Committee shall consist of the following:  Committee members from 
the School Board will be appointed by the Superintendent of the School Board or designee.  
Committee members from TCC will be appointed by the President of TCC or designee. 
 
Either party may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accord with its terms through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. This Agreement may be amended only by written communication 
signed by the Superintendent of the District School Board of Wakulla Christian School and 
the President of Tallahassee Community College. 
 

I. A ratification or modification of all existing articulation agreements  
 
This agreement replaces any existing agreement with TCC and the School Board 
regarding the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement existing as of the start of the term 
set forth above.   

 
II. A description of the process by which students and their parents are informed about 

opportunities for student participation in the dual enrollment program 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered courses 
through educational planning and guidance process.  Each high school will advertise dual 
enrollment through a variety of methods.  High school personnel will direct students to 
meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are interested in learning more 
about participation in dual enrollment.  High school guidance counselors will review 
with the student criteria for participation in the dual enrollment program. Information 
will also be available to students and parents on TCC’s Dual Enrollment website. 
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their 
child to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means.   

 
 
 



III. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to participate in 
dual enrollment 

 
Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment program is 
the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a postsecondary course creditable 
toward high school completion and a career certificate or an associate or baccalaureate 
degree”.  A student who is enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable 
toward a high school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student.  
Physical education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible for 
dual enrollment. 
 
Students enrolled as dual enrollment, early admission, or career dual enrollment shall be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Students enrolled 
as dual enrollment, early admission, and career dual enrollment, will be eligible to 
participate in both high school and college activities as appropriate including graduation 
and other extracurricular activities. Participation in all college activities must be 
approved by the Vice President for Student Affairs. 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment. This list is 
available upon request.  Eligible courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers 
them unless otherwise specified in the agreement. 
 
College courses are offered on the main campus, high school campuses, and through 
distance learning. 
 
Early Admission Dual Enrollment 
Early Admission shall be a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary 
students enroll in a postsecondary institution on a full-time basis (minimum of 12 credit 
hours and maximum of 15 credit hours) in courses that are creditable toward the high 
school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Early admitted students will be 
exempt from the payment of registration, tuition, and laboratory fees.  Both the high 
school and TCC must approve Early Admission for a high school student each semester. 
 
Career Dual Enrollment 
Career dual enrollment is a curricular option of elective credits toward earning the high 
school diploma and completing a career-preparatory certificate program (PSAV).  Career 
dual enrollment is not intended to enable students to take isolated courses unrelated to a 
program.  The School Board will inform all students of the options available and the 
eligibility criteria.   
 
For 2021-2022, career dual enrollment through TCC is available.  

 
 
 



 
IV. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise options to 

participate in the dual enrollment program 
 

Application Process for New Dual Enrollment Students 
 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application.  
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 
Step 5:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the TCC Dual Enrollment 
Coordinator or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 6:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.   
 

 
Application Process for Early Admission Students 
Step 1:  Complete TCC Online Application. 
 
Step 2:  Meet with high school guidance counselor to discuss testing options.   
 
Step 3:  Complete the Permission to Register Form with your guidance counselor.  Your 
guidance counselor will help you choose courses that will count towards your high 
school graduation requirements.  Please make sure that your guidance counselor lists the 
courses on the permission to register form and signs the form. Click here to access the 
form.   
 
Step 4:  Complete the Permission for Early Admission Form with your guidance 
counselor.  Click here to access the form.   
 
Step 5:  Schedule a meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator. 
 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Permission-to-Register.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


Step 6:  Submit the documents below prior to or during your meeting with the TCC Dual 
Enrollment Coordinator.  Documents can be emailed to the Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
or you can bring them to your meeting. 

 Copy of test scores  
 Permission to register form 
 Permission for early admission form 
 High school transcript (please use the FASTER system) 

 
Step 7:  During your meeting with the TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator, you will be 
registered for your TCC courses that are listed on your Permission to Register Form.  
The TCC Dual Enrollment Coordinator is the only person allowed to register you for 
your courses. 

 
Withdrawing from classes and Schedule Changes 
Dual enrollment students must comply with the drop/add and withdrawal policies and 
deadlines published by TCC.  
 
To withdraw, add, or drop from a course(s), students must provide a written request from 
the high school guidance counselor verifying that the student has permission to 
withdraw, add, or drop before the withdrawal deadline.  The request must be submitted 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the withdrawal deadline. Click here for 
the Dual Enrollment Withdrawal Form.  
 
To change a student’s schedule, the guidance counselor must submit a written request to 
TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator before the deadline which is published on TCC’s 
dual enrollment website: Click here for the Course Adjustment Form.    

 
Summer Enrollment 
Students are allowed to enroll in summer courses during Summer B session. Enrollment 
in sessions A, F and C are not allowed. 
  
Graduating high school seniors will not be eligible to participate in dual enrollment 
during the summer.  They will be categorized as degree seeking college students and will 
have to pay for summer courses.  

 
Maximum Course Loads 
Traditional dual enrolled students are allowed a maximum of 11 credit hours each 
semester. All college courses taken must count towards high school credit. 

 
Early admission students are allowed a minimum of 12 credit hours and maximum of 15 
credit hours each semester.  All college courses taken must count towards high school 
credit.  Special permission is required each semester for the early admission program. 
 
Testing for Dual Enrollment Eligibility 
Students will use the P.E.R.T., SAT, and ACT Reading scores to test for dual enrollment 
eligibility. 

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Dual-Enrollment-https:/www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdfWithdrawal-Form.pdf
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/admissions-and-recruiting/forms/Course-Adjustment-Form.pdf


 
Prior to May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
*SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 550 28.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
 
After May 1st, 2017 

P.E.R.T. 

Reading 106 
ENC 1101 Writing 103 

Mathematics 114-122 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 123 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
SAT-I, The College Board 

Reading 440  24 ENC 1101 
Writing and 
Language 

N/A 25 ENC 1101 

Mathematics 440 24 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 470 25.5 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 
Enhanced ACT, American College Testing Program 

Reading 19 
ENC 1101 English 17 

Mathematics 19-20 MAT 1033 
Mathematics 21 MAC 1105, STA 2023, MGF 1106, MGF 1107 



Grade 10 FSA Reading 

Reading 262 ENC 1101 
Students must provide official score reports to TCC for ACT, SAT, and/or FSA 
Reading before being registered for courses.  Scores must be less than two years old.  
 
High schools must provide P.E.R.T. official score reports and P.E.R.T. test history if 
students plan to use high school P.E.R.T. scores.  
 
It is the high schools’ responsibility to provide P.E.R.T. for dual enrollment eligibility.  
TCC will work with the high schools and assist with P.E.R.T. testing for special 
circumstances. 

 
 

V. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for participation in the 
dual enrollment program 

 
The statutory eligibility requirements for academic dual enrollment include: 3.0 
unweighted high school GPA and demonstrated readiness for college coursework 
through scores on a common placement test (as established in State Board of Education 
Rule 6A-10.0315).  
 

TCC defines readiness for college-level coursework as placement into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading.  
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment prior to completing the 10th grade FSA or 
Florida Statewide Assessment Test will be required to place into college-level 
Mathematics and English and Reading in order to be eligible for the dual enrollment 
program.  There are no exceptions to this rule. 
 
Students who wish to enroll in dual enrollment after taking the 10th grade FSA or Florida 
Statewide Assessment and have appropriate scores (see Table 1) on the English and 
Reading areas and do not have appropriate scores on the math portion of the college 
placement test will only be allowed to accumulate 12 college credit hours until the math 
portion of the test is passed.  Students must be enrolled in the high school math college 
readiness course during the accumulation of the 12 college credit hours or have 
successfully completed the high school math college readiness course which will be 
verified through the high school transcript.  There are no exceptions to this rule.  
Students must place into ENC 1101 with their test scores to be eligible to participate in 
the dual enrollment program. 
 
Students who will graduate from high school prior to completion of the postsecondary 
course may not register for the course through dual enrollment.  
 
Students may lose the opportunity to participate in the dual enrollment program if they 
are disruptive to the learning process. Procedure is outlined in TCC’s Student Handbook. 

https://online.fliphtml5.com/satlx/klmx/


 
Continued Enrollment for Academic Dual Enrollment 
Students must maintain a minimum 3.0 unweighted cumulative high school grade point 
average.  Continued eligibility for college credit dual enrollment requires the 
maintenance of a 3.0 unweighted high school GPA.  
 
Additionally, the TCC GPA will be reviewed each semester and students must maintain 
a 2.0 TCC GPA at the time of review as well as a successful completion rate of 75% (C 
or better).  Students will be given a one semester grace period if the TCC GPA is below 
2.0 or completion is below 75%.  High school students are only allowed one grace 
period. 

 
Early Admission Eligibility 
Students who wish to participate in early admission must be a high school senior and 
have an unweighted high school GPA of 3.5 or higher.  Additionally, students must have 
a TCC GPA of 3.0 or higher. 
 
Continued Enrollment for Early Admission  
Students must maintain a minimum 3.5 unweighted cumulative high school GPA and a 
TCC GPA of 3.0. 

 
VI. A delineation of the high school credit earned for the passage of dual enrollment 

courses 
 
College courses as specified in the Florida Department of Education Articulation 
Coordinating Committee Statewide Agreement for Dual Enrollment Courses – High 
School Subject Area Equivalency List are eligible for dual enrollment.  This list is 
available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf.  Eligible 
courses may be taken in any format that TCC offers them unless otherwise specified in 
the Agreement.  
Other courses in the Statewide Course Numbering System, with the exception of 
remedial courses and physical education skills courses, can be used for dual enrollment 
credit and count toward high school graduation, including electives provided these 
courses are specified in this agreement. 

 
Courses Not Specified on the List – Courses that are not listed in the Dual Enrollment 
Course – High School Subject Area Equivalency List that are taken through dual 
enrollment must be identified in the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement along with 
the number of high school credits to be awarded either as an elective or subject area 
credit. 
 
Courses not listed on the Dual Enrollment Course – High School Subject Area 
Equivalency List 
 
N/A 

 

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5421/urlt/0078394-delist.pdf


 
VII. A description of the process for informing students and their parents of college-level 

course expectations 
 
Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and 
rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, including dual enrollment 
courses offered on the high school campus. Students should understand that dual 
enrollment courses are college courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may 
be much greater than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses 
become a part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA.  
 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform the students and 
parents about the college-level expectations.  TCC will inform students and parents of 
college-level course expectations through a dual enrollment orientation.  TCC will also 
inform students and parents of college-level course expectations through the use of the 
course syllabus which is given to each student in each college-level course at the 
beginning of each semester. 

 
 

VIII. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required grade 
point averages on an individual student basis  

 
Section 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. 
 
Exceptions to High School Grade Point Averages Terms: 
Upon recommendation by the principal or designee, a student with an unweighted GPA 
of 2.75-2.99 may enroll for a maximum of 6 hours of dual enrollment courses provided 
that the student has shown evidence of ability to do advanced level work through 
successful completion of Advanced Placement, Honors, or other advanced courses or 
supplemental work and provided that the student is in a high school college preparatory 
program in high school.  Continuation of dual enrollment will require satisfactory 
progress in all college dual enrollment courses as defined in Section V of this agreement 
and successful completion of all high school courses with grades no lower than “B”.  
Documentation must be provided to TCC’s Academic Affairs designee. 
 
Exceptions related to serious illness or other extenuating circumstances will be reviewed 
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by both the principal and TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee. 
 
TCC will provide a form to the high school that must be completed, signed, and returned 
to TCC before the student will be allowed to continue in the program.  A rationale for the 
exception must be stated on the form. 
 



TCC will not make exceptions to the required TCC grade point average.  Students will 
be given a one semester grace period during which a review will take place to determine 
continued eligibility.  The grace period can only be used once during the student’s high 
school matriculation. 
 

 
IX. Registration policies and procedures for dual enrollment courses as determined by the 

postsecondary institution 
 
Students must complete their registration form with their high school guidance 
counselor.  The form must be completed with all the required information about course 
reference numbers as well as 2nd options.  The completed registration form will be given 
to TCC’s Dual Enrollment Coordinator who will register the student for courses that are 
available at the time the form is received. 
 
2021-2022 Deadlines for High Schools: 
 
Due Date Activity Responsible 

Party 
June 18th, 2021 
(Noon)  

Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Summer 
2021 B session  

High school 

July 22nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student from 
Summer 2021 B session (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

August 16th, 2021 Last Day for students to submit all 
paperwork and test scores (as 
necessary) for enrollment in Fall 2021 
semester. This includes registration for 
courses on the high school campus. 

 

August 23rd, 2021 TCC First Day of Class  

August 24th, 2021 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

  November 2nd, 2021 Last Day to Withdraw a student (use 
withdrawal form) 

 

November 15th, 
2021 

Deadline to make changes to course 
offerings at the high school for Spring 
2021. Deadline to identify instructors. 

High school 

December 3rd, 2021 TCC Last Day of Class  

December 6th, 2021  Deadline for students to submit 
paperwork for Spring 2021 
(applications, test scores, permission to 
register forms) 

 



December 13th, 2021 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

December 14th, 2021 TCC Transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

TCC 

January 6th, 2022 TCC First Day of Class  

January 12th, 2022 Last Day to Change Schedules or drop 
students (use course adjustment form) 

High school 

March 11th, 2022 Deadline to Submit “Course Request 
for Dual Enrollment” Form for 2022-
2023. 

High school 

March 25th, 2022 Last Day to Withdraw a student High school 

April 22nd, 2022 TCC Last Day of Class  

May 2nd, 2022 Deadline to submit grades to TCC High school 

May 6th, 2022 TCC transcripts will be delivered to 
high schools 

 
 

 
X. Exceptions, if any, to professional rules and guidelines for instructors teaching dual 

enrollment courses 

There are no exceptions. 

 
XI. Exceptions, if any, to rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student handbook 

of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 
 
Dual enrollment courses are college courses both in content and outcomes. Dual 
enrollment instructors must meet the teaching credentials established by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS). Section 1007.271(5)(a), F.S., governs dual 
enrollment faculty. These provisions were taken from the Dual Enrollment Statement of 

Standards, which was codified in State Board of Education Rule 6A 14.064, FAC. 
 
Faculty who wish to teach college credit courses that are offered on the high school 
campuses must complete a TCC Online Application and all other procedures required by 
TCC’s Human Resources and Academic Divisions.  Applicants must be recommended 
for hire by the appropriate Academic Dean/Director.  Faculty must also adhere to the 
following guidelines (Florida Statutes, 1007.271 (5a):   
 
Meet the qualifications required by TCC as identified in the TCC Faculty Credentials 
Manual. The qualifications apply to all faculty members regardless of the location of 
instruction. TCC requires compliance with these qualifications.   

  
1. Provide TCC with an official copy of the postsecondary transcript.   

https://www.tcc.fl.edu/admissions/apply/


 
2. Provide a copy of the current syllabus for each course taught to the discipline 

chair or department chair of the postsecondary institution before the start of 
each term. The content of each syllabus must meet the same standards 
required for all college-level courses offered at TCC and must be approved by 
the appropriate TCC academic division.   

 
3. Adhere to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in TCC’s 

adjunct faculty handbook.  
 

4. Adhere to the rules, guidelines, and expectations (which apply to faculty 
members) that are stated in TCC's student handbook.  

 
Dual enrollment courses taught on the high school campus must meet the same 
competencies required for courses taught on the TCC campus.  To ensure equivalent 
rigor with courses taught at TCC, the high school instructor will provide a 
comprehensive, cumulative end-of-course assessment and a series of assessments of all 
expected learning outcomes to the appropriate Dean or designee.  The completed and 
scored assessments must be returned to TCC and held for one year (Florida Statutes, 
1007.271 (6a)). 
 
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify TCC’s 
Academic Affairs designee of all courses that the high school is requesting to offer.  
Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each course that the high 
school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, TCC will decide what 
courses can be offered on the high school campus.   
 
It is the responsibility of each instructor to check their online class rosters every day to 
ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class.  If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment contact 
person.  The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify TCC’s dual 
enrollment coordinator. 
 
Advanced Placement (AP) students who do not take or pass the AP examination are not 
permitted to earn postsecondary credit for the AP course via dual enrollment.  Per 
Section 1007.272, Florida Statutes, no student will be allowed duplicate credit based on 
enrollment in a joint AP/dual enrollment course.  Dual enrollment courses taught on a 
high school campus may not be combined with any non-college credit high school 
course, per Section 1007.271 (6d), Florida Statutes. 

5.  
Dual enrolled students taking courses on the high school campus must submit the same 
documentation as the students taking courses on TCC’s main campus. 

 
 



XII. Responsibilities of the School Board regarding determination of student eligibility 
before participating in the dual enrollment program and the monitoring of student 
performance while participating in the dual enrollment program 

 
The School Board is responsible for determining if the student is eligible to be tested for 
the dual enrollment program.  Students who have a 3.0 unweighted high school grade 
point average and who have an interest in participating in dual enrollment should be 
referred to their high school guidance counselors to discuss the eligibility requirements 
for the program.  
 

   The high school must inform all students who plan to participate in dual enrollment of  
    their obligation to complete an online TCC application. 

 
The high school is responsible for advising students relative to ensuring that they meet 
the requirements for high school graduation. The high school is also responsible for 
advising students about Bright Futures. 
 
It is TCC’s responsibility to monitor student performance in TCC’s dual enrollment 
courses. The School Board and TCC should exchange student transcripts in order to 
make sure that students are eligible to continue in the dual enrollment program. 
 
TCC is responsible for assigning grades for dual enrollment courses.  The School Board 
is prohibited from changing any grade (once assigned by the college) when posting it to 
the high school transcript. 

 

XIII. Responsibilities of the Florida College System institution regarding transmission of 
student grades in dual enrollment courses to the school district 

 
TCC will transmit student transcripts to the School Board at the end of each semester. 
 

 
 

XIV. Responsibilities for funding that delineates costs incurred by the school district and 
TCC 

 
Dual enrollment students shall be exempt from paying registration, matriculation, and 
laboratory fees.   
 
Textbook Costs & ADA Accommodation Costs 
Textbooks will be provided to students by the School Board.  Textbooks purchased by 
the School Board shall remain the property of the School Board as specified in Section 
1007.271 (17), F.S.  TCC will continue its efforts to reduce the cost of textbooks and 
materials to the School Board. The costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment 
students with disabilities taking courses on TCC’s campus will be covered by TCC.  The 



costs of ADA accommodations for dual enrollment students with disabilities taking 
courses on the high school campus will be covered by the School Board. 
 
Standard Tuition Rate 
Per the 1007.271, F.S., the School Board is required to pay the standard tuition rate per 
credit hour to TCC for instruction taking place on the college campus for dual enrolled 
students.  The approved standard tuition for FY 2021-2022 is $71.98. The rate will be 
charged for courses taking place on TCC’s main campus, TCC’s educational centers, and 
distance learning courses.   

 
TCC will not charge tuition to the School Board for Summer 2022 dual enrollment 
students. TCC also will not limit dual enrollment participation based upon capacity, F.S. 
1007.271(4) in any term. 
 
TCC will use the fees collected to enhance the dual enrollment program.  TCC will 
promote dual enrollment participation, increase capacity, and enrich the quality of 
services associated with the dual enrollment program. The School Board’s payment of 
tuition to TCC will increase the number of counselors available to the dual enrollment 
program in order to recruit more dual enrollment students and to help prepare students 
for transition to college, to counsel students in meta-majors and programs of study, and 
to track and provide feedback to students on their progress. TCC will also provide high 
school faculty and counselor training for dual enrollment.   
 
Instructional Costs 
It is the responsibility of the School Board to provide full instructional costs for dual 
enrollment occurring on the high school site. For instruction occurring on the high school 
sites by college faculty, the School Board must reimburse TCC for the costs associated 
with the proportion of salary and benefits.  
 
TCC cannot guarantee the availability of instructors for dual enrollment classes offered 
at the high school. Schools can assist TCC by recommending qualified School Board 
instructors for consideration for teaching dual enrollment courses offered at the high 
school. 
 
TCC regularly uses high school faculty to teach both dual enrollment and regular TCC 
courses and incorporates training, mentoring, and assessment of these faculty into its 
regular adjunct program. Therefore, TCC’s costs associated with instruction occurring on 
the high school site by TCC approved high school faculty who are paid by the School 
Board will be considered a normal part of TCC’s obligation to its faculty for training and 
mentoring; no costs will be assessed. 
 
Invoicing for Financial Obligations 
TCC will invoice the School Board for financial obligations within 21 business days of 
TCC’s Census date which is normally after the 5th day of class each semester. 
 
A second invoice may be generated for all students who enroll in an express session if 



that student is not included in the main session invoice. 

The school district is responsible for any student who fails to withdraw after the add/drop 
period.    

Before invoicing, each district will need to verify enrollment. Once verification has 
occurred, there will be no changes to the invoices. 

 
XV. Responsibilities for Student Transportation 

 
It is the student’s responsibility to provide his or her own transportation. 

 
 

XVI. Responsibilities for services and resources that are available to students with disabilities 
who register for enrollment 
 

By this agreement, Section 1007.271(25), F.S., requires that the dual enrollment 
articulation agreement include services and resource that are available to students with 
disabilities who register for dual enrollment.   
 
Tallahassee Community College provides services and facilities accessible to, and usable 
by, all qualified students with disabilities.  The college will assure educational access by 
providing reasonable and appropriate accommodations to those students who provide the 
proper documentation.  An Individual Education Program (I.E.P) filed with the student’s 
home school will suffice as appropriate documentation to receive necessary 
accommodations.   
 
The college provides physical, academic, and program access including: Extended time 
testing, Note-taking Services, Reader Services, Recorders, Audio Books via 
LearningAlly.org, E-Texts, Adaptive technology, Math accommodations, Sign Language 
interpreters, and Spelling accommodations.   

 
 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the School Board of Wakulla Christian School, Florida and The 
District Board of Trustees, Tallahassee Community College, Florida have adopted this 
agreement and caused it to be executed by their respective chairs and chief executive officers, in 
accordance with Section 1007.271, F.S., Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements. 

 

    
Date  Chair, Tallahassee District Board of Trustees, 

 Tallahassee Community College, Florida 

 

    
Date  President, Tallahassee Community College 

 

    
Date  Chair, Wakulla Christian School Board 

 

    
Date  Director, Wakulla Christian School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Calandra Stringer, Ph.D.                                                                                                                

Vice President and Provost 
   
SUBJECT: Academic Curriculum Changes 

 
 
Item Description 
This item presents proposed new courses and course changes. 
 
Overview and Background 
The curriculum and Innovation Committee members review and make recommendations for 
Board approval for new and revised curriculum.  Due to changes by the State Board of 
Education as well as the revision of programs to meet workforce demands, there are several 
changes that are being proposed.  
 
Each year there is a review of curriculum by the discipline committee consisting of faculty 
from the SUS and FCS institutions.  Based upon their review and recommendations, the 
State Board of Education approved several changes impacting hours for courses and 
program length.  
 
To meet and be in alignment with these changes, TCC is proposing the addition, deletion and 
revision of several career and technical certificate programs and courses offered at the 
Florida Public Safety Institute (FPSI). The college also proposes the addition and deletion of 
Nurse Assistant career and technical certificate program courses.    
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
None 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board approved the program revisions, new courses and course changes each year. 
 
Recommended Action 
That the Board approve the recommendation for the program revisions, course additions, 
deletions, and revisions as attached. 

 



PROGRAM CHANGES  
 
Law Enforcement Basic Recruit Career and Technical Certificate (770 clock hours) 
Due to Florida Department of Law Enforcement regulations, TCC is proposing the addition and 
deletion of several courses offered at the Florida Public Safety Institute (FPSI). There were no 
changes in program length. 
 

Add program courses:  
CJK 0002 Introduction to Law Enforcement (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0016 Communication (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0018 Legal (64 clock hours) 
CJK 0019 Interviewing and Report Writing (56 clock hours) 
CJK 0063 Fundamentals of Patrol (40 clock hours) 
CJK 0021 Serving Your Community (34 clock hours) 
CJK 0072 Crimes Against Persons (48 clock hours) 
CJK 0073 Crimes Involving Property and Society (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0079 Crime Scene Follow-up Investigations (34 clock hours) 
CJK 0400 Traffic Incidents (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0401 Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0402 Traffic Crash Investigations (30 clock hours) 
CJK 0403 DUI Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0093 Critical Incidents (44 clock hours) 
CJK 0421 Conducted Electrical Weapon/Dart-Firing Stun Gun (4 
clock hours)   
 

  Delete program courses: 
CJK 0001 Introduction to Law Enforcement (10 clock hours) 
CJK 0012 Legal (62 clock hours) 
CJK 0013 Interactions within a Diverse Community (40 clock 
hours) 
CJK 0014 Interviewing and Report Writing (56 clock hours) 
CJK 0064 Fundamentals of Patrol (35 clock hours) 
CJK 0065 Calls for Service (36 clock hours) 
CJK 0077 Criminal Investigations (50 clock hours) 
CJK 0078 Crime Scene Courtroom (35 clock hours) 
CJK 0084 DUI Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0087 Traffic Stops (30 clock hours) 
CJK 0088 Traffic Crash Investigations (32 clock hours) 
CJK 0092 Critical Incidents (44 clock hours) 
CJK 0422 Dart-firing Stun Gun (8 clock hours) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Crossover from Correctional Probation Officer to Law Enforcement Officer Career and Technical 
Certificate (532 clock hours) 
Due to Florida Department of Law Enforcement regulations, TCC is proposing the addition and 
deletion of several courses offered at the Florida Public Safety Institute (FPSI). There were no 
changes in program length. 
 
  Add program courses: 

CJK 0016 Communication (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0018 Legal (64 clock hours) 
CJK 0063 Fundamentals of Patrol (40 clock hours) 
CJK 0021 Serving Your Community (34 clock hours) 
CJK 0072 Crimes Against Persons (48 clock hours) 
CJK 0073 Crimes Involving Property and Society (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0079 Crime Scene Follow-up Investigations (34 clock hours) 
CJK 0400 Traffic Incidents (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0401 Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0402 Traffic Crash Investigations (30 clock hours) 
CJK 0403 DUI Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0093 Critical Incidents (44 clock hours) 
CJK 0421 Conducted Electrical Weapon/Dart-Firing Stun Gun (4 
clock hours) 
CJK 0394 CPO: Cross-over Program Updates (10 clock hours) 

  Delete program courses: 
    CJK 0012 Legal (62 clock hours) 

CJK 0013 Interactions within a Diverse Community (40 clock 
hours) 

    CJK 0064 Fundamentals of Patrol (35 clock hours) 
    CJK 0065 Calls for Service (36 clock hours) 
    CJK 0077 Criminal Investigations (50 clock hours) 
    CJK 0078 Crime Scene to Courtroom (35 clock hours) 

CJK 0084 DUI Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0087 Traffic Stops (30 clock hours) 
CJK 0088 Traffic Crash Investigations (32 clock hours) 
CJK 0092 Critical Incidents (44 clock hours) 
CJK 0393 Crossover Program Updates (8 clock hours) 
CJK 0422 Dart-firing Stun Gun (8 clock hours) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Crossover from Correctional Officer to Law Enforcement Officer Career and Technical Certificate 
(518 credit hours) 
Due to Florida Department of Law Enforcement regulations, TCC is proposing the addition and 
deletion of several courses offered at the Florida Public Safety Institute (FPSI). There were no 
changes in program length. 
 
  Add program courses: 

CJK 0002 Introduction to Law Enforcement (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0016 Communication (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0018 Legal (64 clock hours) 
CJK 0019 Interviewing and Report Writing (56 clock hours) 
CJK 0063 Fundamentals of Patrol (40 clock hours) 
CJK 0021 Serving Your Community (34 clock hours) 
CJK 0072 Crimes Against Persons (48 clock hours) 
CJK 0073 Crimes Involving Property and Society (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0079 Crime Scene Follow-up Investigations (34 clock hours) 
CJK 0400 Traffic Incidents (12 clock hours) 
CJK 0401 Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0402 Traffic Crash Investigations (30 clock hours) 
CJK 0403 DUI Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0093 Critical Incidents (44 clock hours) 
CJK 0421 Conducted Electrical Weapon/Dart-Firing Stun Gun (4 
clock hours) 

  Delete program courses: 
CJK 0001 Introduction to Law Enforcement (10 clock hours) 
CJK 0012 Legal (62 clock hours) 
CJK 0013 Interactions within a Diverse Community (40 clock 
hours) 
CJK 0014 Interviewing and Report Writing (56 clock hours) 
CJK 0064 Fundamentals of Patrol (35 clock hours) 
CJK 0065 Calls for Service (36 clock hours) 
CJK 0077 Criminal Investigations (50 clock hours) 
CJK 0078 Crime Scene Courtroom (35 clock hours) 
CJK 0084 DUI Traffic Stops (24 clock hours) 
CJK 0087 Traffic Stops (30 clock hours) 
CJK 0088 Traffic Crash Investigations (32 clock hours) 
CJK 0092 Critical Incidents (44 clock hours) 
CJK 0422 Dart-firing Stun Gun (8 clock hours) 

   
Correctional Probation Officer Basic Recruit Career and Technical Certificate (562 clock hours) 
Due to Florida Department of Law Enforcement regulations, TCC is proposing the addition of 
one course offered at the Florida Public Safety Institute (FPSI). Due to this proposed change 
the program length has increased from 482 to 562 clock hours. 
 
  Add Program course: 
    CJK 0040 Criminal Justice Firearms (80 clock hours) 
 



   
 
NEW COURSES 
 
Course ID Course Name Rationale for New Course 
CJK 0016 Communication This new course is based of new Florida 

Department of Law Enforcement requirements.  
CJK 0072 Crimes Against Persons This new course is based of new Florida 

Department of Law Enforcement requirements. 
CJK 0073 Crimes Involving Property and 

Society 
This new course is based of new Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement requirements. 

CJK 0079 Crime Scene Follow-up 
Investigations 

This new course is based of new Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement requirements. 

CJK 0400 Traffic Incidents This new course is based of new Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
COURSE REVISIONS 
 
All changes are state mandated. 
Course 
ID 

Course Name Type of 
Change 

Current  Proposed Rationale for 
Change 

CJK 
0001 

Introduction to 
Law 
Enforcement 

Course ID 
Change 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0001 
(10 clock 
hours) 

CJK 0012 (12 clock 
hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0012 

Legal  Course ID 
Change 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0012 
(62 clock 
hours) 

CJK 0018 (64 clock 
hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0014 

Interviewing and 
Report Writing 

Course ID 
Change; 
Course 
Title 
Change; 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0014 
(Interviewing 
and Report 
Writing; 5 
clock hours) 

CJK 0019 
(Interviewing for 
Report Writing; 56 
clock hours)  

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0013 

Interactions 
within a Diverse 
Community 

Course ID 
Change; 
Course 
Title 

CJK 0013 
(Interactions 
within a 
Diverse 

CJK 0021 (Serving 
Your Community; 
 34 clock hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 



Change; 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

Community; 
40 clock 
hours) 

CJK 
0064 

Fundamentals 
of Patrol 

Course ID 
Change 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0064 
(35 clock 
hours) 

CJK 0063 (40 clock 
hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0092 

Critical 
Incidents 

Course ID 
Change  

CJK 0092  CJK 0093  Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0087 

Traffic Stops Course ID 
Change 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0087 
(30 clock 
hours) 

CJK 0401 (24 clock 
hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0088 

Traffic Crash 
Investigations 

Course ID 
Change 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0088 
(32 clock 
hours) 

CJK 0402 (30 clock 
hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0084 

DUI Traffic 
Stops 

Course ID 
Change  

CJK 0084  CJK 0403  Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

CJK 
0422 

Dart-Firing Stun 
Gun 

Course ID 
Change; 
Course 
Title 
Change; 
and Clock 
Hour 
Change 

CJK 0422 
(Dart-Firing 
Stun Gun; 8 
clock hours) 

CJK 0421 
(Conducted 
Electrical Weapon/ 
Dart-Firing Stun 
Gun; 4 clock hours) 

Proposed 
changes 
based on 
FDLE 

 
 
 
COURSE DELETIONS 
 
Course ID Course Name Rationale for Course Deletion 
CJK 0065 Calls for Service No longer required based on proposed 

FDLE guidelines. 
CJK 0077 Criminal Investigations No longer required based on proposed 

FDLE guidelines. 
CJK 0078 Crime Scene Courtroom No longer required based on proposed 

FDLE guidelines. 
 
 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Construction Status Report 

 
 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of various construction, renovation, remodeling and site 
improvement projects at all TCC locations for the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached Construction Status report details the noteworthy construction and renovation 
projects being undertaken to support the educational mission of the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All construction and renovation projects are funded prior to approval, with most being funded 
from capital improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 
 

 



CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT – AS OF AUGUST 2021 
 
MAIN CAMPUS (SITE 1) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 212 

75% TBD Awaiting A/V 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 219 

75% TBD Awaiting A/V 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 220 

75% TBD Awaiting A/V 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AP 149 

75% TBD Awaiting A/V 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – SM 119 

75% TBD Awaiting A/V 

Facilities Room 
Renovation – TPP 211 

75% TBD Awaiting A/V 

AMTC Welding Lab 60% TBD Work has commenced 

FPAC Roof Replacement 95% TBD Finishing wall panels 

Baseball Fieldhouse Roof 
Restoration 

5% TBD 10 Year Roof Restoration 

Student Union  
1st Floor/Food Court 
Renovation 

5% TBD In design stage 

Administration Lobby 10% TBD Waterwall on order 

Sidewalk Repairs, 
Elimination of Trip Hazards 

Continuous On-going 
Repaired 1,465 Trip Hazards and 
Replaced 25 sections of Sidewalk 

SUSTAINABILITY % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Hydration Stations Continuous On-going Prevented 181,494 Plastic Bottles from 
going to landfills 

Recycled Plastic 
Lumber/Furniture Continuous On-going Prevented 1,567,000 Plastic Bags from 

going to landfills 

CO2 Avoidance Continuous On-going 
Prevented 9,075 lbs of CO2 from being 
released into the atmosphere 

GADSDEN SERVICE CENTER (SITE 2) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

FLORIDA PUBLIC SAFETY INSTITUTE (SITE 3) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    



Page 2 
 

 
 
CENTER FOR INNOVATION (SITE 4) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

CFI 2nd Floor Renovation 5% TBD 50% Drawings 

GHAZVINI CENTER FOR HEALTHCARE EDUCATION (SITE 5) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Ghazvini Simulator 
Expansion 

5% TBD In design stage 

WAKULLA ENVIRONMENTAL INSTITUTE (SITE 6) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

 
FOUNDATION CLASSROOM RENOVATION SUMMARY 

Renovated Classroom(s)  Cost to Date 

AC 212 ‐ Classroom Renovations  $          46,198.22 

AC 219 ‐ Classroom Renovations  $          35,520.48 

AC 220 ‐ Classroom Renovations  $          40,734.68 

AP 149 ‐ Classroom Renovations  $          33,542.68 

SM 118 ‐ Classroom Renovations  $          24,087.31 

SM 119 ‐ Classroom Renovations  $          30,061.12 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
 ______________________ 
SUBJECT: Fund Analysis - August 

 
 
Item Description 
This item is to provide the Board a summary of the College’s operating revenues and 
expenses as of 7/31/2021 
 
Overview and Background 
As directed in the Florida Public Community College Accounting Manual, revenues from state 
appropriations, student tuition and fees, interest earned, and other contributions are recorded 
and monitored in the College’s operating fund (fund 1).  Expenditures for direct instruction 
expenses are also recorded in the operating fund. 
 
In accordance with Florida Statutes (1011.01), the Board of Trustees must approve the 
College’s operating fund budget each fiscal year. The College monitors the operating fund 
activity to ensure approved budget limits are maintained. Additionally, the Board has 
requested a report of all purchases over $100,000, but less than $325,000. The report for the 
month of January is attached to this item. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
For information only, no Board action required. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The College continues to be in sound financial condition. 
 
Recommended Action 
For information only, no Board action required. 

 



REVENUE July Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 

Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Budget

Student Fees 8,483,201$            1,933,506$            $        1,983,201* 1,933,506.42$       23,202,077$          9%

State Support 2,512,589$            2,981,647$            2,512,589$            2,981,646.67$       35,779,760$          7%

Federal Support 47,465$                 40,833$                 47,465$                 40,833.33$            490,000$               10%

Other Revenue 115,380$               148,180$               115,380$               148,180.25$          1,778,163$            6%

Non-Revenue Sources -$                       83,333$                 -$                       83,333.33$            1,000,000$            0%

TOTAL REVENUE 11,158,635$          5,187,500$            4,658,635$            5,187,500$            62,250,000$          7%

EXPENSES July Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 

Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Expenses

PERSONNEL COSTS

Administrative 286,202$               274,414$               286,202$               274,414.03$          3,292,968$            9%

Instructional 1,269,460$            1,203,263$            1,269,460$            1,203,263.30$       14,439,160$          9%

Non-Instructional 1,213,234$            1,213,858$            1,213,234$            1,213,858.45$       14,566,301$          8%

OPS 399,198$               507,279$               399,198$               507,279.47$          6,087,354$            7%

Personnel Benefits 851,325$               884,518$               851,325$               884,518.08$          10,614,217$          8%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 4,019,419$            4,083,333$            4,019,419$            4,083,333$            49,000,000$          8%

CURRENT EXPENSES

Services 213,817$               340,902$               213,817$               340,901.83$          4,090,822$            5%

Material & Supplies 42,754$                 197,067$               42,754$                 197,066.58$          2,364,799$            2%

Other Current Charges 526,627$               545,365$               526,627$               545,364.92$          6,544,379$            8%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 783,198$               1,083,333$            783,198$               1,083,333$            13,000,000$          6%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                       20,833$                 -$                       20,833.33$            250,000$               0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,802,617$            5,187,500$            4,802,617$            5,187,500$            62,250,000$          8%

Tallahassee Community College Fund Analysis

Unrestricted Current Fund

As of July 28, 2021

* - the July 'Student Fees' mostly reflect the summer semester tuition and fees. Fall semester fees collected will be shown during the month of August.



Purchase 

Order

Purchase 

Order Date Supplier

Total PO 

Amount Description Approval/Exemption

PO-013730 6/7/2021 Office Environments 123,238.40
Training tables and chairs (COVID 

replacements)
State of Florida Contract #56120000-19-ACS.

PO-013757 6/24/2021
Fitzgerald Collaborative 

Group, LLC
180,690.00

Ghazvini Nursing Simulation Auditorium 

Renovation
RFQ 2020-02 Architectural Services

PO-013760 6/28/2021
Follett Higher Education 

Group Inc.
244,500.00 500 Dell Inspiron computers for students

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 

commodities available only from a single or sole source.

PO-013773 7/1/2021 SHI 187,302.02
Microsoft premium support and 

consulting services
DMS State Contract # 43230000-15-02

PO-013825 7/2/2021
City of Tallahassee 

Utilities
129,750.00 Ghazvini Utilities

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 

commodities available only from a single or sole source.

PO-013909 7/6/2021
Talquin Electric 

Cooperative
300,000.00 FPSI Utilities

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 

commodities available only from a single or sole source.

PO-013927 7/6/2021 Reinhart Foodservice 200,000.00 Food for FPSI cafateria
Exempt from the soliciation process, per FAC 6A-

14.0734(2)(d) - Food.

PO-014007 7/9/2021 BKJ, Inc. 202,970.00
Architectural/engineering services for 

SU - 1st floor renovations
RFQ 2020-02 Architectural Services

PO-014014 7/9/2021 Bryant Miller Olive P.A. 130,000.00
Legal services for UFF union 

negotiations

Exempt from the soliciation process, per FAC 6A-

14.0734 (2)(f) - Professional services, including, but not 

limited to, instructional services, health services, lectures 

by individuals, attorneys, legal services, auditors, and 

management consultants.

PO-014015 7/9/2021
Andrews, Crabtree, Knox 

& Longfellow, LLP
215,000.00

Legal service for TCC District Board of 

Trustees

Exempt from the soliciation process, per FAC 6A-

14.0734 (2)(f) - Professional services, including, but not 

limited to, instructional services, health services, lectures 

by individuals, attorneys, legal services, auditors, and 

management consultants.

PO-014023 7/9/2021 Cheney Brothers Inc. 115,000.00 Food for FPSI cafateria
Exempt from the soliciation process, per FAC 6A-

14.0734(2)(d) - Food.

PO-014064 7/12/2021
Casa Student Housing 

LLC, dba 228 Dixie LLC
230,400.00

1-Year Lease Renewal with Torchlight 

Townhomes for Athletics Housing.
Negoitated after RFP 2017-07 Student Athletic Housing.

PO-014143 7/22/2021

Dept. of Management 

Services - Division of 

Telecommunications

130,942.00
Telecommunication services for the 

College

Exempt from the soliciation process, per FAC 6A-

14.0734 (2)(f) - Professional services, including, but not 

limited to, instructional services, health services, lectures 

by individuals, attorneys, legal services, auditors, and 

management consultants.

Issued in June & July 2021

Purchase Orders from $100,000 to $324,999 +



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
  
SUBJECT: Annual Inventory of Property Assets 

 
 
Item Description 
This item presents the status of the annual inventory of the College's property assets for 
the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
Staff has the responsibility to record the College's property assets and conduct an annual 
inventory for the designated items of furniture and equipment. Staff has successfully 
completed the annual inventory of the College's property assets, which includes a total of 
578 items having a total cost at the time of acquisition of $10,234,481.70. 
 
The inventory was successful in verifying the location and control of all of the College’s 
assets, with the exception of two items. After an extended search of the campus was 
completed, stolen/missing property reports were filed with the TCC Campus Police for both 
items. The unlocated items will remain on the College’s property records and will be identified 
as ‘Missing’ until resolution of their locations or status. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no funding or financial implications. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
An inventory of College property is conducted annually and the results are reported to the 
Board for review. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only, no action required. 
 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

August 16, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 

President 
FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    

Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 
  
SUBJECT: Disposition of Surplus Property Assets 

 
 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval to dispose of property assets designated as surplus. 
 
Overview and Background 
The College has the responsibility to periodically dispose of accumulated surplus property 
assets which are obsolete and serve no useful function or their continued use is not 
economically feasible. These assets may include IT equipment, furniture and vehicles, but not 
facilities or land. 
 
Florida Statutes (section 274.05) allows a government unit discretion to classify as surplus 
any of the property assets that meet the description listed above. The College has deemed 
the items on the following list as surplus in accordance with this statute. 
 
Florida Statutes (section 274.06) allows property assets to be disposed of in the most efficient 
and cost-effective manner as determined by the government unit. The College may offer 
these items for sale according to the provisions of the statute, or the items may be donated or 
destroyed if they are without value. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no funding or financial implications. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
During previous years, the Board has authorized the College to dispose of surplus property 
items in accordance with the procedures defined in Florida statutes. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize the College to dispose of the items listed. 
 

 



Asset  Tag Description
Acquired 

Date
Purchase 
Amount

Depreciated 
Value

BA-17208 MOWER, TORO GROUNDMASTER 345 4/1/1992 $12,136.00 $0.00
BA-17213 CHIPPER, HYDRAULIC BEARCAT 2/1/1994 $6,419.00 $0.00
BA-17241 MOWER, GROUNDMASTER 345 5/1/1996 $14,118.08 $0.00
BA-17192 VEHICLE FORD TRUCK 12' DUMP 2/1/1993 $15,270.00 $0.00
BA-17196 MASTERBILT FREEZER 2/1/1993 $15,270.00 $0.00
BA-17204 CART, EZ-GO 6/1/1993 $6,003.19 $0.00
BA-17236 CART, EZ-GO WORKHORSE 3/1/1995 $5,821.65 $0.00
BA-17303 MOWER, ZERO TURN RADIUS 10/1/2004 $7,961.00 $0.00
BA-17304 MOWER, ZERO TURN RADIUS 10/1/2004 $7,961.00 $0.00
BA-17335 DATA SWITCH 2/1/2006 $6,686.70 $0.00
BA-17401 DATA SWITCH 3/1/2008 $5,875.00 $0.00
BA-17402 CISCO WS-C3750-48P SWITCH 3/1/2008 $5,875.00 $0.00
BA-17279 40" LCD PANEL 4/1/2004 $5,395.00 $0.00
BA-17465 VBP 5300 ST10 POLYCOM 10/8/2010 $7,709.00 $0.00
BA-17521 MSA 5200E SERVER 4/7/2011 $8,206.21 $0.00
BA-17522 MSA 5200E SERVER 4/7/2011 $8,206.21 $0.00

Surplus Assets for Disposal


	Top
	1.	June Board Minutes
	June 2021  Minutes

	2.	BOT Self - Eval
	Board Self Evaluation Memo (August 2021)
	2021 Board Of Trustees Self-Evaluation Summary

	3.	Election of Officers
	Election-of-Officers

	4.	Human Resource Report
	August Board Agenda 2021_1
	August 2021 Board Report

	5.	Attorney Invoice
	Attorney Invoice
	Bryant Miller Olive Invoice 75238 (billing through June 11 2021)
	Bryant Miller Olive Invoice 75396 June 2021 $1175.00

	6.	Sponsored Programs - Provider - August
	Sponsored Programs - Provider - Aug 2021

	7.	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent - August
	Sponsored Programs - Fiscal Agent -August 2021

	8.	Architect Invoices
	Architect Memo Template_AUG2021
	ALW_17320.8.4 TCC- Welding Lab - Build-Out
	ALW_17320.8.5 TCC- Welding Lab - Build-Out
	ALW_20390.2.2 -  TCC Center for Innovation - 2nd fl Improvements invoice
	ALW_20390.4.1 -  TCC Center for Innovation - 2nd Floor Tenant Fit Out
	BKJ_21.109 AR INVOICE_2_210623
	DAG_20086_TCC Stairwell D_20086_0621_06-28-2021

	9.	TCC Foundation Update
	Update Memo
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting 6-30-21 Final Page 1
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting 6-30-21 Final Page 2
	Fundraising Info for DBOT Meeting 7-31-21 Final

	10.	TCC Foundation Gift of Art
	Gift Memo - Sky Sentinel
	Gift Memo - Sky Sentinel 2

	11.	2021-2022 Public and Charter School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements
	2021-2022 TCC Public and Charter School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement - Board Template 
	2021-2022 TCC Public and Charter School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 

	12.	Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreements with Private Schools
	2021-2022 TCC Private School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement - Board Memo Template 
	2021-2022 TCC Private School Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement 

	13.	Academic Affairs Curriculum Changes
	Academic Curriculum Changes
	Curriculum Attachment August 2021 Board Meeting

	14.	Construction Status Report
	Construction Status Memo Template_AUG2021
	CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT_NewTemplate_AUG2021

	15.	Fund Analysis - August 2021
	Board Agenda August Fund Analysis
	July 2021 Fund Analysis
	Board Item- PO's-$100-324K+ July 2021

	16.	Annual Inventory of Property Assets
	Board Agenda Annual Inventory

	17.	Disposal of Surplus Property Assets
	Disposal of Surplus Property - August 2021
	Surplus Equipment for BOT Approval (Aug 2021)

	Bottom

